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Financial Highlights
MBREE

OPERATING RESULTS ¥4&

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12B31ALFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

2014 20134 20124 20114 20104

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TET THT FHET THT THT

Revenue HEE 1,243,545 796,594 1,232,287 372,726 328,120

Operating profit (loss) REER (E518) 60,567 60,320 96,443 (224,349) 52,942

Finance costs BERA (28,802) (27,292) (25,930) (10,524) (779)

Profit (loss) before taxation BRBATE (B518) 31,765 33,028 70,513 (234,873) 52,163

Income tax (expense) credit FREH ()% (28,114) (16,978) (51,866) 3,417 (12,947)

Profit (loss) for the year REEHEM (EE) 3,651 16,050 18,647 (231,456) 39,216
Profit (loss) attributable to: TIHIALREMS

s (EE) -

Owners of the Company ViN/NE 7= DN 3,820 16,365 18,660 (229,858) 36,610

Non-controlling interests JEIERRIE R (169) (315) (13) (1,598) 2,606

3,651 16,050 18,647 (231,456) 39,216

FINANCIAL POSITION 815k 5%

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
2014 % 20134 20124 20114 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET FHET FET
Total assets BEMAA 1,915,197 1,652,395 1,812,470 1,945,034 871,860
Total liabilities EBERE (833,913) (573,819) (755,183) (908,167) (164,845)
1,081,284 1,078,576 1,057,287 1,036,867 707,015
Equity attributable to owners VN/NCIE 2PN
of the Company FEfHER 1,079,643 1,076,778 1,055,273 1,034,844 703,601
Non-controlling interests FEE R 1,641 1,798 2,014 2,023 3,414
1,081,284 1,078,576 1,057,287 1,036,867 707,015
Note: The consolidated results of the Group for the two years ended 31 MisE: ALEHZE2014F K2013F 12 A31 8 Ik

December 2014 and 2013 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as MEFERRE ZEMAEER2014F K
at 31 December 2014 and 2013 have been extracted from the audited 2013F 12 A3 HMEERBERDHIEAR
consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 77 FHRAETTETIBENAEBEEIZRA NG

to 79 of the Annual Report. Wk e

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREERRAF



DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Zhou Zhenxing

Executive Directors
Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)
He Zuyuan

Non-executive Directors

Chen Qiming

Xing Jianhua (resigned on 1 June 2014)
Yin Engang (appointed on 1 June 2014)
Huang Jianming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ling Bing (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Qiu Xianhong

Huang Jinsong (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Gao Pei Ji (appointed on 22 August 2014)

Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 22 August 2014)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Qiu Xianhong (Chairman)

Xing Jianhua (resigned on 1 June 2014)

Ling Bing (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Yin Engang (appointed on 1 June 2014)

Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 22 August 2014)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Qiu Xianhong (Chairman)

Yu Zhiping

He Zuyuan

Ling Bing (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Huang Jinsong (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Gao Pei Ji (appointed on 22 August 2014)

Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 22 August 2014)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman)

Yu Zhiping

Ling Bing (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Qiu Xianhong

Huang Jinsong (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Gao Pei Ji (appointed on 22 August 2014)

Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 22 August 2014)

Corporate Information

NEER

)
IREFUTES
B

BTES
FREV(EEHITE)
el 7T

FHITES

PR B RA

ZEEE (R 201456 A1 HEHT)
FEM (201446 A1 BEEE)
=

BIFHITES

EE (201448 A 22 HEHT)

S 554

YW (R 201448 A 22 AEHT)
SEE (FR2014F 8 A22 HEALT)
ZEIR (R 201448 A22 AEZ(T)

BEREES

EBSEst (£/E)

ERE (201446 A1 HEHE)
EE (201448 A 22 HEHT)
FEBI(A2014F 6 A1 HEEZT)
R (5 2014F 8 22 AEZR )

HFWEES
R (/)

= i 7
7N

17T

&R (7R2014F 8 A 22 HEHE)
=W (R 201448 A 22 AEHT)
SEE (R 2014 E8 A 22 BEZT)
R (7R 2014F 8 22 HEZ )

EEERES
BURE (/%)

—+= 3
7NN

EE (A 2014F 8 A22 HEHT)

S 50 4

=W (R 201448 A 22 AEHT)
SEE(R2014F8 A22 BEZRT)
ZEIR (R 201448 A 22 AEZ(T)

Annual Report 2014
B -MEFEFR
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
CGN Mining Company Limited (“CGN Mining” or the “Company”) and
its subsidiary companies (the “Group”), | hereby announce the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

In 2014, trading in natural uranium, pharmaceutical and food
businesses continued to be the Group’s main source of income.

During the reporting period, the Group achieved the following results:

. Revenue of HK$1.24 billion (2013: HK$797 million);

o Gross profit margin after deducting sales and distribution
expenditure being 14% (2013: 18%);

° Profit attributable to owners of the Company being HK$4 million
(2013: HK$16 million); and

° Profit attributable to owners of the Company/Turnover being
0.3% (2013: 2%).

In 2014, the Group acquired Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium Resources
Investment Company Limited (“Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium”). Upon
completion of the acquisition of Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium, the
Group indirectly acquired a 49% interest in Semizbay-U Limited
Liability Partnership (“Semizbay-U”) and owned 49% of the sales rights
of the off-take quantity of mineral products which are operated by the
two subsidiaries of Semzibay-U. However, owing to the complexity of
the governmental approval process, the Group has not yet completed
all governmental approval procedures prior to the closing of the
acquisition as at 31 December 2014, which affected the Group’s
results for the year 2014.

In 2014, as the Group reinforced its marketing efforts, the Group’s
businesses in pharmaceutical and food recorded substantial increase
in sales. However, there is also significant increase in sales and
administrative expenses, so the pharmaceutical and food businesses
still recorded net loss. Meanwhile, the Group’s properties further
depreciate due to the slowing down of the domestic real property
business. The Group intends to conduct business reconstruction
and gradually divesting from pharmaceutical and food businesses
in order to set a solid foundation for the Company to transform into
an enterprise of resources development with high-quality assets and
a clear direction in its major businesses. The administrative costs
incurred due to business reconstruction also increased substantially
this year.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the natural uranium business, the nuclear power industry continued
to operate in the post-Fukushima era. Globally, the development in
nuclear power keeps on being cautious, bringing challenges to the
Group’s natural uranium business making of profits. Though the
trading of natural uranium recorded a substantial increase in turnover,
it failed to achieve the expected profit target.

In short, the business environment of the Group in the year 2014
was very harsh. Although the revenue achieved substantial growth,
the cost of sales increased even more, coupled with the increase in
administrative costs due to business transformation and failure to
complete the acquisition as scheduled, which resulted in a significant
decline in the Group’s profits in 2014.

In 2015, the Group will strive to complete the acquisition of Beijing
Sino-Kazakh Uranium as soon as possible, and complete the exit plan
for its investment in the pharmaceutical and food businesses in a timely
manner. Also, the Group will endeavor to seek new opportunities for
the expansion of the Group’s business and keep on solidifying the
foundation for development. We shall make a good grasp of opportune
occasions and go with the flow with a view to continuously creating
value for our shareholders.

Deep in our heart, we recognize the importance of good corporate
governance and the Group shall continue to strive for improvements
in and to implement good corporate governance within its daily
operations. We shall have stricter internal control, strengthened risk
management and make improvement on the Company’s management
systems and effectiveness so as to live up to the trusts endowed by
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

As the Chairman of the Board, | wish to express on behalf of the Board
of the CGN Mining my heartfelt gratitude to our business partners, our
clients and shareholders who have given us their trusts. | also take
this opportunity to sincerely thank all staff who have endeavored to
contribute towards the development of the Company.

Chairman
Zhou Zhengxing

27 March 2015, Hong Kong

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

2014 was a significant year for the Group that it adjusted the
investment portfolio and conducted business transformation. In order
1o become a resource development and energy services company with
a focused business with clear development direction, and assets with
high sustainability, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in Beijing
Sino-Kazakh Uranium; and will seek appropriate opportunity to exit
from the pharmaceutical and food business, so as to sustain the stable
operations of the pharmaceutical and food business, also to conduct
internal staff and business restructuring and strive for negotiation
between the Group and the potential transferees.

Natural Uranium Business

Before the Group takes physical possession of the uranium mineral
assets, the natural uranium business remained as the Group’s major
business and the main source of the Group’s revenue for the year.
The Group has recorded a turnover of HK$1,148 million in trading of
natural uranium during the reporting period, an increase of 54% as
compared with the turnover of approximately HK$743 million last year;
the realized gross profit of natural uranium business was approximately
HK$172 million, an increase of 26% as compared with the gross profit
of approximately HK$137 million in 2013.

Pharmaceutical and food business

Although the Group plans to seek appropriate opportunity to exit from
the pharmaceutical and food business, it can still sustain the stable
operations of its existing pharmaceutical and food business. During
the reporting period, the Group recorded HK$88 million turnover in its
pharmaceutical and food business, an increase of 91% as compared
with the turnover of approximately HK$46 million in 2013; the gross
profit of pharmaceutical and food business was HK$17.50 million, an
increase of 91% as compared with the gross profit of approximately
HK$9.17 million in 2013.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the year 2014, the Group ceased to sell products of Madaus GmbH
Germany and continued to sell “Taurolite”, “Duowei” and “Opin”; and
the Group will continue to hold the production base in Wuhan, Hubei
Province, the PRC, Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited
and part of the properties.

Acquisition of the uranium mining project

After preliminary work and negotiations, the Group announced its
proposal to acquire the entire equity interests of Beijing Sino-Kazakh
Uranium on 16 May 2014, and its proposal was approved at the
extraordinary general meeting on 23 July 2014. Beijing Sino-Kazakh
Uranium is interested in 49% equity interests of Semizbay-U and
owned 49% of the sales rights of the off-take quantity of mineral
products which are operated by the two subsidiaries of Semzibay-U.
Due to the underestimation of the complexity of the governmental
approval procedures, the Group was not able to complete the
acquisition of Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium in 2014. The Group will
continue to work towards the completion of the project in 2015.

Consolidated Results

During the reporting period, the consolidated revenue of the Group
was HK$1,244 million, an increase of 56% as compared with the
revenue of approximately HK$797 million in 2013; the consolidated
gross profit was HK$196 million, an increase of 28% as compared
with the gross profit of approximately HK$153 million in 2013; the
gross profit margin was 16%, a decrease of 3 percentage points as
compared with the gross profit margin of approximately 19% in 2013.

As the Group was not able to complete the acquisition of Beijing
Sino-Kazakh Uranium as scheduled, and paid a large amount of staff
remuneration cost due to the plan of divesting from pharmaceutical
and food businesses for business restructuring, therefore the Group
was not able to achieve the expected profit target, and the significant
increase in administrative costs resulted in a significant decline in the
Group’s profits. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$4 million (2013: HK$16 million). Basic
earnings per share were HK$0.11 cents (2013: HK$0.49 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR DM

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In the year 2015, the overall analysis and assessment made by the
Company towards the operational environment and the industry trend
is that: the nuclear power will restart steadily and the international
natural uranium market is under recovery from its low point. Though
there are fluctuations in the macroeconomic environment, the overall
environment remains optimistic. Accordingly, the Company decided to
consolidate the foundation of operations and seize the opportunities of
business expansion in its business plan of 2015. In 2015, the Company
will focus on the following: completing the acquisition of Beijing Sino-
Kazakh Uranium, exiting from the pharmaceutical and food businesses
completely; accomplishing the goal of business restructuring of turning
the Company into an enterprise focusing on the development and the
operation of uranium resources; preparing for the asset management
and the implementation of product off-take for Semizbay-U after the
completion of the acquisition of the shareholdings of Beijing Sino-
Kazakh Uranium; stabilizing the foundation of business operation;
seizing the opportunity of low price level of uranium and sluggish
price of bulk metal commodities; searching for new acquisition target
of resources project so as to expand room for development of the
business of the Company; and meanwhile, strengthening the risk
management and enhance governance so as to sustain steady and
healthy development of the Company.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure remained strong during the year
as the gearing ratio (total borrowings/equity attributable to owners
of the Company, net of intangible assets and goodwill) was 51%
(2013: 48%). As at 31 December 2014, the Company had in issue
3,332,586,993 ordinary shares (31 December 2013: 3,332,586,993
ordinary shares). During the year 2014, the Company had not issued
any new share (2013: nil). All long-term debt is convertible bond.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of bank balances,
cash and deposit in CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited
(“Huasheng”) was approximately HK$1,525 million (2013: HK$1,030
million). As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowing (31 December 2013: nil), with no pledged
bank deposits (31 December 2013: nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the average cost of financing was around
5% (2013: 5%) per annum in 2014. The Group has maintained
sufficient financial resources for daily operation, if there are appropriate
merger and acquisition opportunities, additional financing may be
funded for financing part of the merger and acquisitions.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk and currency policy

The sales and purchases of the Group were mainly denominated in
USD and RMB (2013: USD and RMB).

In 2014, the Group did not enter into any forward contracts, interest
or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
During the year, the Group did not experience any material difficulty or
negative effect on its operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on
currency exchange rates.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2013: nil).
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Manag;er*nent Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

EFRNMHBIE ML =

Key financial figures and ratios

Year 2014 Year 2013
2014 F 20134

Income statement items: BEKRER
Revenue (HK$’ million) mEE (AT 1,244 797
Gross profit margin ERE 16% 19%
Selling and distribution expenses (HK$' milion)  $HE RS HEMAX (BEBT) 19 10

Gross profit margin after deducting selling and G HE RO EHAX %

distribution expenses EFE 14% 18%
IR RIHEB N FE R T 8

B R 0.3% 2%
EFE - Bl rEMEH

ATH) 2R ([EBITDAL)

Profit attributable to owners of
the Company/Turnover
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and

12

amortisation (‘EBITDA”) (HK$’ million)

(B&@%T) 65 66
EBITDA/Turnover EBITDA ER 4% 258 b & 5% 8%

As at

31 December
2014

R 2014 F

12831 H
HK$’ million
BEATT

As at

31 December
2013
2013 F
12H31H
HK$’ million
BEBTT

Statement of financial position items: BB RRRIER
Liability component of convertible bonds AR ESR B &S 550 521
Bank balances and cash RITEGF LIRS 226 1,030
Net tangible assets BHEEFE 1,081 1,078
Gearing ratio BAREELLE 51% 48%
Average trade receivable turnover days FEUBR B HR — 15 62 days 104 days
62 X 104 K
Average inventory turnover days FEEBE-F5 9 days 9 days
(excluding goods in transit) (TRIETERES) CPN 9K

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREERRAF



Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 151 employees. 139 of these
employees were located in China and 12 in Hong Kong.

The policies of remuneration, bonus, share option scheme and training
for the Group’s employees are commensurate with the performance of
the employees and comparable to market rate. The Group encourages
employees to participate in external training progress to develop
themselves on a continuous basis, so as to improve staff performance
to meet future challenges and gain a competitive edge.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 58, was appointed as
the chairman and a non-executive director of the Company on 5
December 2013. Mr. Zhou is also the chairman of the board of
CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd. (‘CGNPC-URC”), China General
Nuclear Power Services Corporation and CGN (Beijing) Nuclear
Technology Application Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Nuclear Corporation from March 1989 to January 1996 as an deputy
director of the General Affairs Division of the Nuclear Fuel Bureau and
subsequently the secretary to the executive deputy general manager of
the China National Nuclear Group. Between July 1996 and December
1999, he joined Unilever Wall’s (China) Co., Ltd. as a vice general
manager and the head of Human Resources & External Relations,
concurrently between July 1998 to April 2001, he also served as a
vice president of Sumstar Group Co., Ltd., a company under Ministry
of Light Industry. Between May 2001 and March 2003, Mr. Zhou
joined China Universities Intelligence Bank Co., Ltd. as the executive
vice president, head of Human Resources and Project Management.
Between April 2003 and September 2006, Mr. Zhou joined Galaxy
Captek Co., Ltd.* (“Galaxy Captek”) (3t iR AIF M E AR A
7)), a member of China General Nuclear Power Corporation (formerly
known as China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation)
(“CGNPC”), as general manager. Between October 2006 and August
2009 he was the general manager of CGNPC-URC. He has been the
chairman of the Board of CGNPC-URC since August 2009. Mr. Zhou
graduated with a bachelor of engineering degree in metal materials
engineering from the Hebei University of Science and Technology
and with a master of engineering degree in metal materials and heat
treatment from the Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Zhou has more
than 25 years experience in operation and management of largescale
enterprises at home and abroad, as well as the practical operation
experience in uranium resources exploration and nuclear resources
operation system.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yu Zhiping (“Mr. Yu”), aged 51, is the executive director
and chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed the
chairman and a non-executive director on 18 August 2011 and
was re-designated from the chairman and a non-executive Director
of the Company to an executive eirector and the chief executive
officer of the Company on 5 December 2013. Mr. Yu also served
as the managing director of CGNPC-URC and chairman of Swakop
Uranium (PTY) Ltd. (“Swakop Uranium”) (f Bz siZEETRIARA
7]). Mr. Yu joined CGN Group in 1989, and served as the head of
the Production Planning Division at the joint venture of the Daya
Bay Nuclear Power (a subsidiary of CGNPC), and subsequently as
the head of the Development Planning Division of the CGNPC, the
secretary general of the Financial and Economic Affairs Committee, the
director of the Research Centre, the general manager of the Strategic
Planning Department of CGNPC, and served as the general manager
of CGNPC-URC since September 2009. Mr. Yu graduated with a
bachelor degree in engineering mechanics from Huazhong University
of Science & Technology. Mr. Yu has over 24 years of experience in
corporate management and nuclear fuel system operation.

Executive Director

Mr. He Zuyuan (“Mr. He”), aged 49, is an executive director,
executive vice president and authorised representative of the
Company. He was appointed an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 18 August 2011 and was re-
designated from an executive director and chief executive officer to an
executive director and executive vice president on 5 December 2013.
Mr. He also served as the deputy general manager of CGNPC-URC,
the chairman and non-executive director of Energy Metals Ltd. (a listed
company in Australia, stock code: EME), the chairman of CGNPC-URC
Xinjiang Development Ltd.* (F1 &% #h 3¢ % 58 2% & 5 IR 2 8]), CGNPC-
URC Guangdong Development Ltd.* (Bt EREEERAR)
and Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium, a non-executive director of Swakop
Uranium and North River Resources Plc (listed on AIM of the London
Stock Exchange, ticker: NRRP), a director of Semizbay-U. Mr. He
joined CGN Group in 2007 and has served as the chief financial officer
of CGNPC-URC. Mr. He graduated with a bachelor degree from East
China Institute of Geology and was awarded an MBA degree from
Tsinghua University. Mr. He has over 22 years of experience in uranium
exploration and corporate management.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Qiming (“Mr. Chen”), aged 52, was appointed a non-
executive director of the Company on 5 December 2013. Mr. Chen
is a non-executive director of Silver Grant International Industries
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”), stock code: 171) and vice chairman
of its board of directors since 15 February 2012. Mr. Chen served
as a non-executive director of CGN Meiya Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Meiya Power”) (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1811) since March 2012. He also served as a director of
CGNPC-URC. Mr. Chen joined CGNPC in 1996, and served various
positions including assistant to the head of the Construction Contract
Division of Ling Ao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., (“Ling Ao Nuclear Power”)
(a subsidiary of CGNPC), head of Commerce Division of CGNPC,
manager of the Contract Procurement Department of Liaoning
Hongyanhe Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., (“Hongyanhe Nuclear Power”)
manager of the Contract and Procurement Department of China
Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. and the deputy general manager
of the Assets Management Division of CGNPC. He currently serves as
the general manager of the Assets Management Division of CGNPC.
Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor of science in engineering from the East
China University of Metallurgy and a master in economies from the
University of International Business and Economics. Mr. Chen has over
20 years of experience in the power industry, contract business and
asset management.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Yin Engang (“Mr. Yin”), aged 47, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 1 June 2014. Mr. Yin also serves
as a non-executive director of Meiya Power, a director of CGNPC-
URC, CGN Finance Co., Ltd., Fujian Ningde Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.,
Yangjiang Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., (“Yangjiang Nuclear Power”),
Taishan Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd.* (ZILZEEEER A
7)) (“Taishan Nuclear Power”), CGN Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.* (FF &
A AR AR A 7)) and CGN European Energy. Mr. Yin joined CGN
Group since 1996, and has worked in various subsidiaries of CGN
Group subsequently. Between July 1996 and March 1997, Mr. Yin was
an auditor in Ling Ao Nuclear Power. From March 1997 to July 1999,
he served as an accounting manager/deputy director of Guangdong
Nuclear Power Joint Venture Company Limited* (ER =4 2 HR
7~ a]) (“Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture”). From July 1999
to March 2003, he returned to Ling Ao Nuclear Power as the director
in charge of cost control. In March 2003, Mr. Yin was promoted to
the position of chief accountant. From August 2006 to October 2007,
Mr. Yin served as the chief accountant of Hongyanhe Nuclear Power.
Between October 2007 and April 2014, Mr. Yin worked in China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Industry Investment Fund Management
Co., Ltd.* (T EREXIEEESEIR AR A T) as the deputy head of
the preparatory group, and was promoted to the chief financial officer
in July 2008. Since April 2014, Mr. Yin holds the position of the general
manager of the Finance Department of CGNPC. Mr. Yin graduated
with a master of management engineering degree from Shanxi School
of Mechanics* (BRFa#4 £2p5). Mr. Yin has over 18 years of extensive
experience in financial management and asset management.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Jianming (“Mr. Huang”), aged 51, was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company on 5 July 2012. He
joined the Group since its establishment in April 1998. Prior to Mr.
Huang’s resignation in November 2009, Mr. Huang was one of the
founders of the Group, vice-chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company, who was responsible for planning and deciding
the business and production strategy and daily operation. During
the period from April 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Huang was an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Huang graduated from
Luzhou Chemical Engineering College. Mr. Huang was employed
as a management staff of Sichuan Chengdu Fourth Pharmaceutical
Plant for 11 years since 1982 and accumulated over 22 years of
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Qiu Xianhong (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 18 August
2011. He is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Qiu is a
partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting Firm. Mr. Qiu is also a finance
consultant to China Institute of Strategy and Management. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Qiu was the deputy head of the Financial
Department and Asset Management Department of China National
Packaging Corporation, and the deputy director of the Financial
Department of China Patent Bureau. Mr. Qiu graduated with a bachelor
degree in financial accounting from Jiangxi University of Finance
and Economics. Mr. Qiu has over 27 years of experience in financial
accounting, financial management and auditing.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Gao Pei Ji (“Mr. Gao”), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 22 August
2014. Mr. Gao also serves as an independent non-executive director
of CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1205). Mr. Gao was a deputy director of
C & C Law Office in Beijing between 1984 and 1993. Mr. Gao became
a partner of Clifford Chance, a leading international law firm, between
1993 and 2007. Following his retirement in 2007, he became a PRC
legal consultant to Clifford Chance, Hong Kong office. Mr. Gao has
extensive and diversified experience in a broad area of legal practices,
including banking and finance, direct investment (both inbound and
outbound from the perspective of the PRC) in the areas of energy,
natural resource and petrochemical projects. He has been involved in
the development of nuclear power projects since 1985, including the
development of Daya Bay nuclear power project, the incorporation of
the operating company for Daya Bay and Lingao nuclear power plants
and the development of the Taishan nuclear power project (applying
third generation technology). He holds a LLM degree from the Law
School of University of California, Berkeley. He has been admitted to
practice law in the PRC since 1984.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (“Mr. Lee”), aged 47, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 22
August 2014. Mr. Lee is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising
Accountant of the CPA Australia. He has over 21 years of experience
with unlisted groups, listed groups and professional firms in finance,
accounting and auditing. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 8238). Mr. Lee previously held
senior management position in a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, namely, Meadville Holdings Limited (voluntarily
delisted in 2010). Mr. Lee graduated with a bachelor of economics
degree from Macquarie University in Australia.
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Senior Management’s Profile
BREBEAERHN

Mr. Cai Yusheng (“Mr. Cai”), aged 47, is the vice president of
the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he has served as the
deputy director of the Nuclear Fuel Bureau of China National Nuclear
Corporation, project manager of the International Division of Taisei
Corporation, project manager of the International Division of Bechtel
Group, general manager of Beijing Qing Da Zheng Yuan Environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd* (JtRBARERRERLIZERM AR A R]). He
graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor of engineering
degree in engineering management in 1990 and got a master of
engineering degree in civil engineering from University of Tokyo in
1998. Mr. Cai possesses 25 years of extensive project management
experience and in-depth knowledge in the nuclear fuel industry.

Mr. Wei Qiyan (“Mr. Wei”), aged 48, is the vice president of the
Company. Prior to joining the Company, he has served as the
section chief of the Production Preparation Branch of Guangdong
Nuclear Power Joint Venture, head of the Project Liaison Office of
the Production Branch of Ling Ao Nuclear Power, the head of the
Planning and Contract Department in Yangjiang Nuclear Power, the
head of the Planning and Contract Department and the contract
manager of the Engineering Department in Taishan Nuclear Power.
Mr. Wei graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University with a bachelor of
engineering degree in nuclear reactor in 1988; obtained a master of
engineering degree in nuclear reactor from the Institute of Nuclear
of Tsinghua University in 1991 and graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology with a doctorate of management
degree in business administration in 2007. Mr. Wei has worked in
the nuclear power industry for an extensive period and developed
extensive understanding of the industry, and has rich operational and
management experience.

Mr. Xing Jianhua (“Mr. Xing”), aged 44, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he has served as the
deputy head and Technician of the Miners Bridge area of Yinggangling
Mining Bureau of Jiangxi province, the deputy section head of the
Finance Department of Changsha Research Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy, general manager of the Finance Department of China
Potevio* (Fh B & K {5 B E 2 £ [F]) and general manager of the Finance
Department of CGNPC. Mr. Xing graduated from Hunan Xiangtan
Mining Institute* (1 E#& 3 E6) with a bachelor of engineering degree
in mining engineering in 1995; and obtained a master of management
degree in accounting from Wuhan University of Technology in 2002
and Mr. Xing is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Xing
has over 20 years of experience in mining, financial management and
capital operation.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Senior Management’s Profile

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 48, is the joint company
secretary and general counsel of the Company. Prior to joining the
Company, she has served as the project manager of the Hong Kong
High Technology Development Management Company Limited*
(EAEEREBREEEEARE AR, investment planning director of
the Development Planning department of CGNPC, manager of
the Planning and Finance department, financial representative and
secretary of the Board of Galaxy Captek. Ms Zheng graduated from
Zhejiang University with a bachelor of engineering degree in industrial
automation in 1988 and obtained a master of science degree in
science and technology information from China Defense Science
and Technology Information Center in 1992; Ms. Zheng possess the
qualification certificate for accounting of the PRC and the Enterprise
Legal Adviser Qualification Certificate of the PRC* (/b B 1> 2 /A 2 A [
HEEK). Ms. Zheng has 18 years of experience in project investment
and financial management, 13 years of experience in corporate
governance and 8 years of experience in management of legal affairs.

Mr. He Fei (“Mr. He”): aged 38, is an assistant to the president
of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he held a position
at the Department of International Cooperation MOF of the State
Commission of Science, Technology and Industry for National
Defence, and was then appointed to the French Atomic Energy
Commission; and served successively as the secretary of the General
Manager Department of the General Office, secretary to the chairman
of the Board of the secretariat, senior manager for business of Beijing
Business Unit and director of the Business Liaison Office of the
General Office of CGNPC. Mr. He graduated from the International
Relations College with a Bachelor of Arts degree in English in 2000
and obtained a master of law degree in civil and commercial law from
Renmin University of China in 2009. Mr. He has worked in the nuclear
power industry for an extensive period and developed extensive
understanding of the domestic and international nuclear power
industry, and has rich corporate management experience.

* For identification purpose only

SREBEAERBN

meEEmat ((8at]) > 485% - MAEAR
FIHEFE A R A E TR MR EER o IIAAR
AR MBERASRKEREEARA
AIHA IR - FEZEEARIZEAE
WAREIET - L RBIA AT B8 7526
KIB - IISAEA  EBSSWE - Bit
1088 FEEMIMIASB T XA LEE -
ET BB - 1902 F A B RHR
EERORRIEREXIESE TS24 ; &
ZTHATEGSTAER  URPEEE
EEBEREERS B+ HAE18F1EE
WA EEIE  13ERTAERLHBKLS
FREBHERLES -

AREE(TMEE]) > 3857 - BEARAF
BEBNIE o MAKRRQBIA] - M EREPHE
TZEBAERER - ZIREEER T8
ZEE: PABHETPEREERTNA
BEasREmeE  WERESFRWE - 1k
RIS EB R RCIE - P ABERH S
BB o (A% 42000 F 2R EKEER
BT REEE B BB BN - 2009F
BRBEARAKBREZEEELZSELTE
£ o (AR ERATEZBITELE - HEA
IMZBITEEZERER  BRTEEMND
EEBIEH -

* ERES

Annual Report 2014
— TR

21



22

Corporate Governance Report

RS

The Company is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practice and procedure, by ensuring a quality
Board, sound internal control, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. We believe that good corporate governance practice
can earn the trust of shareholders as well as other stakeholders, and
most importantly, preserve the long-term interests of the shareholders.

To allow the shareholders to have an informed view of the corporate
governance of the Company, we set out below a summative report
describing what we have done to follow the corporate governance
practice for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance policy follows the principles and
practice stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report) (the “Corporate Governance Code”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code during the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014,
except for the deviation from the Code Provisions disclosed below.

Code provision A.6.7: This Code Provision stipulates, inter alia,
Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive
Directors, as equal Board members, should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders of
the Company.
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Pursuant to the Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite the
Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and any other
Committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should
invite another member of the committees or failing this his duly
appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to
answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, the chairman of the Board and the Nomination
Committee, Mr. Yu Zhiping, an executive Director and a member of
the Nomination Committee, and Mr. Qiu Xianhong, a Non-executive
Director, were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 23 May 2014 (the “2014 AGM”) due to other
business engagement.

Mr. He Zuyuan, as the executive Director and executive vice president,
was responsible for chairing the 2014 AGM and answering questions
raised by shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the principle standards of
securities transactions for the directors of the Company. All Directors
have confirmed, following specific enquiries made by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the reporting period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprises 2 executive Directors
(“EDs”), 4 non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and 3 independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) with the following membership
information on which each Director serves:

EEg
ARRAE

MN2014F12 8318 EEEH2BHT
E2([HTEE))  4BIERTES([3F
WITEE]) M3BBIIFRITES ([BL
IEMITES MK - TREISESERE
EFXZEENNEFMNER :

Remuneration Audit Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Directors FHEEE BXRZTEE ERZER
EDs HITES
Mr. Yu Zhiping REFLEE M M

(Chief Executive Officer) (B/E#ITE)
Mr. He Zuyuan ARt M
NEDs FHITES
Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) EIR B (£ ) @
Mr. Chen Qiming PRESAR ST A&
Mr. Yin Engang FREMISTAE M
(appointed on 1 June 2014) (20146 A1 BEZT)
Mr. Huang Jianming EHERSTAE
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. Qiu Xianhong ER ek C C M
Mr. Gao Pei Ji mIEELE M M
(appointed on 22 August 2014) (FR2014F 8 A 22 HEZT)
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis R RS A M M M
(appointed on 22 August 2014) (FR2014F 8 B 22 HEZE)

Notes: BsE

C — Chairman of the relevant Board committees C —EHREZZEENER

M — Member of the relevant Board committees M - HFHEEZEENKE

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years in accordance with Article 108 of the articles of association of
the Company (“Articles of Association”) and the Corporate Governance
Code.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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The Board complies with Rules 3.10 (1) & (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the appointment of at least three INEDs, which
represents at least one-third of the Board, and one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, to the knowledge of the
Company, the Board members does not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

In accordance with Code Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have conducted a review of the
overall effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and
concluded that all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management are effective.

The Board takes charge of the corporate governance function and is
responsible for the tasks stated below. The Board may delegate the
responsibilities to other committees as it thinks fit:

(@) to review the Company’s compliance policies, programs and
procedures and make recommendations as necessary from
time to time;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(©) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to oversee the implementation of any code of conduct and/
or business ethics of the Company to ensure the Company’s
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations, including
but not limited to the Listing Rules and the Takeovers Code;
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)
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to review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

to form any committee(s) or panels, appoint members thereto,
delegate at any time and from time to time to any person
or committee(s) or panel(s), any of its powers and functions
conferred on it, review and approve the reports of the
committees(s) and panel(s), review their performance and revise
their composition and terms of reference as appropriate;

to oversee all matters and to formulate policies in relation
to the Company’s internal control, succession plans,
remuneration and compensation for Directors and employees,
risk management, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility, and to supervise the Company’s management to
implement such policies;

investigate any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential non-compliance of the Company; and

to do any such things to enable the Board to discharge its
obligations and responsibilities.

Major work performed by the Board as regards the corporate
governance function during 2014 includes:

reviewing and approving the “Procedural Rules of the Board of
Directors meeting” (Revised);

24 reviewing and approving the “Accounting System”;

3L reviewing the Directors’ compliance with the Model Code; and
4, reviewing and confirming the independence of INEDs.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Change of directorship and composition of committees

Resignation of Directors:

(1)

Mr. Xing Jianhua has resigned as a NED and a member of the
Audit Committee, with effect from 1 June 2014;

Mr. Huang Jinsong has resigned as an INED, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
effect from 22 August 2014; and

Mr. Ling Bing has resigned as an INED, a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, with effect from 22 August 2014.

Appointment of Directors:

1

Mr. Yin Engang has been appointed as a NED and a member
of the Audit Committee, with effect from 1 June 2014;

Mr. Gao Pei Ji has been appointed as an INED, a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, with
effect from 22 August 2014; and

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis has been appointed as an INED, a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, with effect from 22 August 2014.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors, including the chairman and the chief executive officer, are
required to retire from office by rotation once every three years and are
subject to re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting
(the “AGM”) in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
Corporate Governance Code.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors, who have served the longest on the Board, must retire and
be eligible for re-election at each AGM.

Any further re-appointment of an INED who has served the Board for
more than 9 years will be subject to separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
general meeting after their appointment, and shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING EEMEI

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, Directors RIBEREEATARXEALBSK EF
should participate in continuous professional development to develop E2EFEHERRIINR  UBRERE
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their FHMEEET - E 2 AERESTE R
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the MM ABRANEOER FAESeMEE
period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, all Directors have Bl o 7R 2014F1 A1 HZE=2014F 12 A 31
participated in appropriate continuous professional development HERR - FTEESCRBERIETIEREK
activities by way of attending training seminar or reading material on 5&%%$"ﬂ$ﬁ%ﬁ§ﬁ%$ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂ&ﬁ ]
legal and regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business or to AR NEEEREFN  REEEHN
the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. SEUEZERRETE -

A summary of training taken by the Directors since 1 January 2014 up LA R B B 2014F 1 A1 BE20144F
to 31 December 2014 is set out as follows: 12 A1 HEEMEX 215

Type of training

Directors B=E EIEE
EDs HITES
Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer) REF(BEHNTE)
He Zuyuan AT
NEDs FHITES
Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) AREL (F ) a
Chen Qiming PR AL A
Xing Jianhua SR
(resigned on 1 June 2014) (201456 A1 BB
Yin Engang F R
Huang Jianming s
INEDs BYFHITES
Qiu Xianhong [ 53t a
Gao Pei Ji A a
Lee Kwok Tung Louis IR a
Ling Bing &R b
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (A 20144E 8 A 22 HEHT)
Huang Jinsong =R b
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (R 20145 8 A 22 HEHE)
Notes: B aE
a Attending training seminar a: s A R
b: Reading seminar materials on legal and regulatory subjects relevant to b: MEEARNREHREETRHELBEEH
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and obligations KA REEER
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the period between 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014,
the chairman of the Company is Mr. Zhou Zhenxing and the chief
executive officer of the Company is Mr. Yu Zhiping. The Company
has complied with Code Provision A.2.1 which stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Board is functioning properly, with
good corporate governance practices and procedures, whereas the
chief executive officer, supported by the EDs and the management
team, is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses, including
the implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board.

NEDS

The term of appointment of NEDs are as follows:

NEDs FHITES
Zhou Zhenxing JE R B
Chen Qiming B A% EA
Yin Engang F B
(appointed on 1 June 2014) (FR2014F 6 A1 BEZET)
Xing Jianhua ERE
(resigned on 1 June 2014) (72201446 A 1 BEHTL)
Huang Jianming =EH
* Term of appointment of Mr. Xing Jianhua ends on 1 June 2014

following his resignation.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Term of Appointment

ZEFH

5 December 2013 — 4 December 2015
201312 A5 H—2015F 12 A4 H

5 December 2013 — 4 December 2015
201312 A58 —20156412 A4 R
1 June 2014 — 31 May 2016
20146 A1H—2016%F5 A 31 H

5 December 2013 — 4 December 2015*
201312 A5 H—2015F 12 A48~
4 July 2014 - 3 July 2016
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (“Ms. Zheng”) (appointed on 1 June 2014) together
with Ms. Lai Siu Kuen (“Ms. Lai") (appointed on 5 December 2013) of
KCS Hong Kong Limited, an external service provider, are the joint
company secretaries of the Company. The primary contact person of
the Company is Ms. Zheng. Ms. Zheng reports to the chairman and/
or the chief executive officer directly and is responsible to the Board
for ensuring that the Board complies with relevant procedures, laws
and regulations and Board meetings are conducted efficiently and
effectively. Ms. Zheng is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the professional development of
the Directors. Ms. Lai assists Ms. Zheng in performing her duties as a
Joint Company Secretary.

In accordance with the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Zheng and
Ms. Lai have received no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training for the year 2014.

BOARD PROCESS

During the year, the Board met regularly to discuss and formulate the
overall strategy as well as the operational and financial performance
of the Group. In addition to acting by written resolutions, Directors
participated the meeting either in person, by proxy or through
electronic means of communications.

Board members have full access to relevant information both at the
meetings and at regular intervals.

At least 14 days’ notices of all regular Board meetings were given to
all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying board
papers were sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors have conducted
a review of the overall effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group.
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TEERRE

The Company held seven (7) Board meetings during the year.

Attendance records of each Director at Board meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2014 are set out as follows:

Directors

EDs

Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)

He Zuyuan

NEDs
Zhou Zhenxing
Chen Qiming
Xing Jianhua

(resigned on 1 June 2014)
Yin Engang

(appointed on 1 June 2014)
Huang Jianming

INEDs
Ling Bing

(resigned on 22 August 2014)
Qiu Xianhong
Huang Jinsong

(resigned on 22 August 2014)
Gao Pei Ji

(appointed on 22 August 2014)
Lee Kwok Tung Louis

(appointed on 22 August 2014)

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREERRAF
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Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/ alternate/
eligible eligible
to attend to attend
HEFEES
BEHE REHEN
2R 2888
BERLE RERLE
EEEG S2%E
HITES
REFV(EEHTE) 6/7 1/7
Al 7/7 -
FHITES
] e 6/7 1/7
BRRSFA 6/7 -
FRE 3/4 1/4
(PR 201446 A1 BEHE)
F B 3/3 -
(H2014F6 A1 BEZME)
=HER 3/7 a/7
BYkHTES
T 4/5 -
(PA20144 8 A 22 HEHE)
ERSEHE 7/7 -
EEEN 5/5 -
(PA20144 8 A 22 HEHE)
=iRE 2/2 -
(R20144F8 A 22 HEZEE)
FEIRR 2/2 -

(R 201448 A 22 HEEE)
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
or a Director arise, the matter would be discussed in a physical
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. INEDs
with no conflict of interest would be present at meetings dealing with
such conflict.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of potential legal action against Directors.

DELEGATION AND WORK DONE BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership and oversees the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs of the
Group.

The Board has formulated a clear written policy that delineates matters
reserved for Board approval of the Group. The reserved matters
include, among other things:

1. the development strategy and planning;

2. corporate policies;

3. financial planning;

4. investment planning;

5. annual budget;

6. major disposals and acquisitions;

7. major connected transactions;

8. appointment and resignation of Directors, company secretary

and other senior management; and

9. other significant operational and financial matters.
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In addition to work relating to corporate governance function, other
major work performed by the Board during 2014 include:

1. approving the 2014 business plan and budget planning;

2. approving the directors’ report, audited financial statements
and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2013;

3. approving the unaudited interim results for the period ended 30
June 2014;

4, considering the non-payment of dividend for the year ended
31 December 2013 and for the period ended 30 June 2014
respectively;

5. proposing the re-election of Directors and the authority of the
Board to fix the remuneration of the Directors to be approved
at the 2014 AGM;

6. proposing the share issue and repurchase general mandate to
be approved at the 2014 AGM,;

7. proposing the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditors of the Company and the authority of the
Board to fix the auditors’ remuneration to be approved at the
2014 AGM,;

8. approving the entering into of a continuing connected
transactions as regards the framework agreement on the
relevant internal financial services of the Group;

9. approving the entering into of a substantial transaction and
connected transaction as regards the agreement on the
acquistion of the entire registered capital of Beijing Sino-Kazakh
Uranium;

CGN Mining Company Limited
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approving the entering into of a continuing connected transaction
as regards the natural uranium purchase contract between the
Company as purchaser and Semizbay-U as seller;

approving the re-designation of Mr. Xing Jinahua from a NED
and a member of the Audit Committee to the chief financial
officer;

approving the appointment of Mr. Yin Engang as a NED and a
member of the Audit Committee, and his remuneration;

approving the appointment of Mr. Gao Pei Ji as an INED, a
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and his remuneration;

approving the appointment of Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis as an
INED, a member of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration

Committee and Audit Committee, and his remuneration; and

fixing the remuneration of the auditors.

The day-to-day operation and management of the Group is delegated

to the senior management. Certain authorities and responsibilities are
also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees with defined
terms of reference, which are of no less exacting than those set out in

the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is
delegated by the Board to perform its duties within the ambit of the
terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2014 and 31 May 2014, the Audit
Committee comprised two INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong (chairman,
a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC with substantial financial
accounting, financial management and auditing experience) and Mr.
Ling Bing, and one NED, namely Mr. Xing Jianhua.

During the period between 1 June 2014 and 21 August 2014, the
Audit Committee comprised two INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong
(Chairman) and Mr. Ling Bing, and one NED, namely Mr. Yin Engang.

During the period between 22 August 2014 and 31 December 2014,
the Audit Committee comprised two INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong
(Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, and one NED, namely
Mr. Yin Engang.

The function of the Audit Committee is basically to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Group, and overseeing the audit process. The Audit Committee
also serves as a focal point for communication, among Directors, the
external auditors, and the management as regards financial reporting,
internal control and the auditing.

Major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2014 includes:

1. assessing the independence and objectivity of external
auditors;

2. reviewing the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company;

3. reviewing the unaudited interim results for the period ended 30

June 2014; and

4. reviewing the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2013.
CGN Mining Company Limited
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Two (2) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year. The
attendance of each audit committee member is set out as follows:

SRERRE

FARKBTMQAREZZEGEH - B
ERZZEERBMHERRINT

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/ alternate/
eligible eligible
to attend to attend
HEBEES
BEHE REHED
=i GV =g 1V
BEREE SERLE
Name of Members 2EEAE 255A
Qiu Xianhong (chairman) EfSesk (F/%) 2/2 -
Xing Jianhua SERE 11 -
(resigned on 1 June 2014) (7201446 A1 BEHE)
Ling Bing 3= 1/2 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (FA20144F 8 A 22 HEHT)
Yin Engang F B 1/1 -
(appointed on 1 June 2014) (FR20144F 6 A1 BEZT)
Lee Kwok Tung Louis ZER - -
(appointed on 22 August 2014) * (R2014F8 A22 HELRT)*
* No Audit Committee meeting was held for the year ended 31 December * RNEEFRREEREZE2014F12 431 H
2014 after the appointment of Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis. I EETERTEXEZESSH -

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) is delegated by the Board to perform its duties within the
ambit of the terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2014 and 21 August 2014, the
Remuneration Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu
Xianhong (chairman), Mr. Ling Bing and Mr. Huang Jinsong, and two
EDs, namely Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. He Zuyuan.

During the period between 22 August 2014 and 31 December 2014,
the Remuneration Committee comprised three INEDs, namely, Mr. Qiu
Xianhong (chairman), Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, and
two EDs, namely Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. He Zuyuan.
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The function of the Remuneration Committee is basically to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of all remuneration of EDs, NEDs and senior management
and review the specific remuneration packages of the EDs and senior
management with reference to the corporate goals and objectives.

Major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2014 includes:

1. reviewing the management’s remuneration packages for the
year 2014, with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives of the Company;

2. making recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration
packages of individual NEDs and senior management (including
those re-designated NEDs and senior management with effect
from 1 June 2014) for the year 2014; and

3. making recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration
of INEDs (including those INEDs appointed on 22 August 2014)
for the year 2014.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding the Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

FoNEE (BT)

0-1,000,000
1,000,001-1,500,000

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid individuals are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Three (3) Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the
year. The attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set

out as follows:

SRERRE

FRABTT=ZQARFMNEZESEH - B

¥FMEZEERBMHERRINT

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/ alternate/
eligible eligible
to attend to attend
HEFEES
BEHE REHEN
2R 2888
BERLE RERLE
Name of Members eE"HE 22%E
Qiu Xianhong (chairman) Rt (£ /) 3/3 -
Yu Zhiping RET 2/3 1/3
He Zuyuan fAltE T 3/3 -
Ling Bing & B 2/3 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (FR20144F 8 A 22 HEHT)
Huang Jinsong =MW 3/3 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (720144 8 A 22 HEHE)
Gao Pei Ji R - =
(appointed on 22 August 2014) * (FR2014F8 A22 HEZRT)*
Lee Kwok Tung Louis =B - -
(appointed on 22 August 2014) * (R2014F8 A22 BELRT)*
* No Remuneration Committee meeting was held for the year ended 31 * REESEELERFEREEREZ 2014
December 2014 after the appointment of Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee F12ABLEFETEBTHNEE S S
Kwok Tung Louis. E
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to perform its
duties within the ambit of terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2014 and 21 August 2014,
the Nomination Committee comprised one NED, namely Mr. Zhou
Zhenxing (chairman), one ED, namely Mr. Yu Zhiping, and three INEDs,
namely Mr. Ling Bing, Mr. Qiu Xianhong and Mr. Huang Jinsong.
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During the period between 22 August 2014 and 31 December 2014,
the Nomination Committee comprised one NED, namely Mr. Zhou
Zhenxing (chairman) and one ED, namely Mr. Yu Zhiping, and three
INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhang, Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok
Tung Louis.

The function of the Nomination Committee is basically to review and
formulate the nomination procedure as regards the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of Directors; review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations or
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy; and to make recommendation to the Board on
candidates for appointment as Directors. The Nomination Committee
follows rigorous selection procedure in choosing the right person
as a member of the Board. Various criteria such as appropriate
professional knowledge, experience, skills and possible contribution of
the candidate will be considered.

Major work performed by the Nomination Committee during 2014
includes:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. reviewing the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
and their effectiveness in the discharge of their duties and
considering the need for any changes;

3. making recommendations to the Board as to nominate
Directors for re-election of directorship at the 2014 AGM,;

4, making recommendations to the Board as to the change of the

Board and Board committee members;

S making recommendations to the Board as to the re-designation
of Directors; and

6. assessing the independence of INEDs.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Three (3) Nomination Committee meetings were held during the year.
The attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out as

follows:

SRERRE

FARTT=ZQRIREEZEEEH - 8L
RELZEERBMHFEBEREINOT :

Number of Number of

meetings meetings

attended in attended by

person/ alternate/

eligible eligible

to attend to attend

HEFEES

BEHE REHEN

2R 2888

BERLE RERLE

Name of Members eE"HE 22%E

Zhou Zhenxing AR 2/3 1/3

Qiu Xianhong [ 53t 3/3 -

Yu Zhiping REF 2/3 1/3

Huang Jinsong ERSIIN 3/3 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (A 201448 A 22 HEHT)

Ling Bing 3= 2/3 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (720144 8 A 22 HEHE)

Gao Pei Ji SIEE - =

(appointed on 22 August 2014) * (FR2014F8 A22 HEZRT)*
Lee Kwok Tung Louis ZER - -

(appointed on 22 August 2014) *

*

No Nomination Committee meeting was held for the year ended 31
December 2014 after the appointment of Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee
Kwok Tung Louis.

In line with the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code
regarding board diversity, which became effective on 1 September
2013, the Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognises the merits of Board diversity and sees the edge of
Board diversity in driving competitiveness. In making up the Board’s
composition, the Board gives regard to varied skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other attributes of the
Board members. All Board appointments are based on the talent, skill
and experience of the individual, as well as gender diversity, so as to
suit the operational needs.

(R 2014E8 B o2 HEEERE)*
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been
adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates
have been made. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

The Company’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
acknowledged its reporting responsibilities pursuant to the Corporate
Governance Code. The auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, is set out
as follows:

Services rendered Friz L0 AR 3%
Audit services EZIRTE
Non-audit services IEEZ RS

The significant amount of fee incurred for non-audit services arose from
i) reviewing financial results of subsidiaries for agreed periods of 2014;
ii) the review of interim financial statements for six months ended 30
June 2014; and iii) the preparation of cash flow projections comfort
letter for the purpose of the circular dated 28 February 2014 and 30
June 2014 respectively issued in connection with the proposed major
and continuing connected transaction in relation to the revolving loan
facility agreement and acquisition of the entire equity of Beijing Sino-
Kazakh.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING

In order to ensure that all shareholders of the Company enjoy equal

BRERMBRAE

RREAARMBRREZE FEMALE
AT B SRR - AR BIRBEEIZA
convenes shareholders’ general meetings every year in accordance BB EEFARREARE - RAFE
RN E BT @A) KRR ARE - HPEE
REBEFREMINBERFIIRE - RF
FREE2014F 12 A31 AIEFEHER
RARIERHINAT

status and effective exercise of their own rights, the Company

with the Articles of Association. During the year, four (4) shareholders’
general meetings were held, including the AGM and three (3)
extraordinary general meetings. The attendance of each Director at the
general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out

as follows:

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/ alternate/
eligible eligible
to attend to attend
HETES
REBHEN
BnadE 2388
RERLE RERLE
Directors SEYA e2%E
EDs HITES
Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer) REF(HEHTE) 0/4 -
He Zuyuan AT 3/4 -
NEDs FHTES
Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) EIRE (£ /) 2/4 =
Chen Qiming GG 2/4 =
Xing Jianhua R 172 =
(resigned on 1 June 2014) (A201446 A1 BE(L)
Huang Jianming = 074 =
Yin Engang F B 0/2 H
(appointed on 1 June 2014) (FR2014F 6 A1 BEZT)
INEDs BYFHITES
Qiu Xianhong Jiifps:s 1/4 -
Ling Bing P s 1/3 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (2014 F 8 B 22 HEHE)
Huang Jinsong = 1/3 -
(resigned on 22 August 2014) (201448 A 22 BEHT)
Gao Pei Ji DA 1/1 -
(appointed on 22 August 2014) (20148 B 22 HEZ )
Lee Kwok Tung Louis 1R 1/1 -
(appointed on 22 August 2014) (20148 A22 HEZRT)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, on the requisition
of one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right to vote at general meetings, the
Directors are obliged to proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company (“EGM”).

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM and deposited at
the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
requisitionists must state the purposes of the meeting and sign the
requisition letter.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed to convene a meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene a meeting, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
may be made in writing and sent to the attention of the Joint Company
Secretary, Ms. Zheng Xiaowei, in one of the following ways:

ik By post: CGN Mining Company Limited
Suites 6706-07, 67/F., Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2806 2861
3. By email: cs@cgnmec.com

Voting by poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules and Article 72 of the Articles
of Association, any votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll, except where the chairman decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter
to be voted by a show of hands.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a general
meeting shall follow the procedures below.

On the requisition in writing of either: i) any number of shareholder of
the Company representing not less than one-fortieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or ii) not
less than 50 shareholders, the Company shall, at the expense of the
requisitionists:

a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be
proposed and is intended to be proposed at that meeting;

b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the joint company secretary not less than 6 weeks before
the general meeting, and in case of a requisition requires notice of a
resolution, or not less than 1 week before the general meeting for any
other requisition.

Change in Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there is no significant
change in constitutional documents of the Company.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged in
trading of natural uranium. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in selling, distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products and property investment. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong is located on Suites 6706-07, 67/F., Central Plaza, 18
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
76 of the annual report.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for business
development, the Board would not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2013: Nil).

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 December
2014, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2013: Nil).

CGN Mining Company Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five years ended 31 December 2014 is set out on page 2 of the
annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out on
pages 80 and 81 of the annual report.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHT

Details of the movements in intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, and prepaid lease payments on
land use right of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18, 19 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In 2011, the Company issued convertible bonds with principal amount
of HK$600,000,000, which can be converted into 2,608,695,652
shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.23 per share. The
proceeds from convertible bonds may finance new business
opportunities or investments of the Group. Details of the convertible
bonds are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS

Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EDs
Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. He Zuyuan

NEDs

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Qiming

Mr. Xing Jianhua (resigned on 1 June 2014)
Mr. Yin Engang (appointed on 1 June 2014)
Mr. Huang Jianming

INEDs

Mr. Ling Bing (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Mr. Qiu Xianhong

Mr. Huang Jinsong (resigned on 22 August 2014)

Mr. Gao Pei Ji (appointed on 22 August 2014)

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (appointed on 22 August 2014)

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such general
meeting. On 1 June 2014, Mr. Yin Engang was appointed as a NED,
and Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis were appointed
as INEDs on 22 August 2014. All of them are eligible and, will offer
themselves for re-election at the next AGM of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. He
Zuyuan and Mr. Qiu Xianhong will retire from office by rotation as
Directors at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), in respect of those Directors who are due to retire and
offer for re-election at the upcoming AGM of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the Director’s service contracts, no contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 14 to 19.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately HK$920,240,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

None of the Company and its subsidiaries redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year 2014.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 July 2003 (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”). As at 31 December 2014, no share
option remained outstanding and exercisable under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “2010 Share
Option Scheme”) at the AGM of the Company held on 2 June 2010 and
terminated the 2003 Share Option Scheme at the same meeting.

After the adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share option
was granted.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme

The following disclosure is a summary of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme as required by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

(1) Purpose:

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined
below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries.

(2)  Participants:

The Eligible Participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme to
whom option(s) may be granted by the Board shall include any
employees, NEDs, directors, suppliers, customers, advisors,
consultants, joint venture partners and any shareholders of any
members of the Group or any invested entities or any holders
of any securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2070 Share
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital at the
date of approval of the share option scheme:

The number of shares which can be issued is 155,105,699
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period must not exceed
one percent (1%) of the then total issued share capital of the
Company.

The periods within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and in
accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence on
the day on which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than ten (10) years commencing
from the date the Board makes an offer of the grant of an option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised:

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer
of the grant of options to an Eligible Participant, there is no
minimum period for which an option granted under the 2010
Share Option Scheme must be held before it can be exercised.

3

(4)

©)
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©

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments of calls must or may be
made or loans for such purpose must be paid.:

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the offer
of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the terms
of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price in respect
of any particular option shall be such price as determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of making the offer of
grant of an option (which shall be stated in the letter containing
the offer of grant of an option) but in any case the exercise price
must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as
stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”)’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price
of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.

The remaining life:

The 2010 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2010.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in notes 3 and 15

to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/cgnmining/index.htm
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

The Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

Number of ordinary
shares of HK$0.01

Name of Director Capacity

EEMR 56
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(b)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had any interest and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ interest and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, according to the register of members
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO and
so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after reasonable
enquiry by the Directors, the following persons/entities, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
and debentures of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Company/
Name of

Group member

Name of shareholder A/ &M Capacity

RRERE KEAR MR 5%

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. (Note 1) Company Beneficial owner

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. (Fi{2E 1) A E=EEA

China Uranium Development Company Beneficial owner
Company Limited (Notes 4 & 5)

hEhEERARAR (4 K5) N BHREBA

CGNPC Uranium Resources Company Interest in a controlled
Co. Ltd. (Notes 2 & 4) corporation

PEZHEERARAR (HE2Rk4) 1A EEE AL g

China General Nuclear Power Company Interest in a controlled
Corporation (Notes 3 & 4) corporation

hEEREEERAR (3 R4) A7) R AERER

Silver Grant International Industries Company Beneficial owner
Limited (Note 5)

REAREXAR AR (M5E5) N BREBA

Notes:

1.

The issued share capital of Perfect Develop Holding Inc. is
beneficially owned as to 58.28% by Mr. Tao Lung, 30.67% by
Mr. Huang Jianming and 11.05% by Mr. Liu James Jin. Mr.
Tao Lung and Mr. Liu James Jin are founders of the Group
and former EDs of the Company. Mr. Huang Jianming is a
founder of the Group and is currently a NED. Pursuant to a
share charge dated 1 April 2011 (the “Share Charge”’), Perfect
Develop Holding Inc. charged 450,000,000 Shares in favour
of China Uranium Development. Subsequently, pursuant to a
supplemental deed dated 18 February 2014 (“Supplemental
Deed”), 225,000,000 Charged Shares were released on 18
February 2014 and subject to a lock-up which will expire on
31 December 2014. The remaining 225,000,000 Charged
Shares will continue to be charged in favour of China Uranium
Development until 31 December 2014. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 February 2014 for
further details of the Supplemental Deed.
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Number of
shares Approximate
(Note 3)  percentage of
RHEA  shareholding
(Fi3E3) MEBNEALL
463,476,940 (1) 13.91% (1)
225,000,000 (S) 6.75% (S)
4,503,695,652 (L) 135.14% (L)
550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)
4,503,695,652 (L) 135.14% (L)
550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)
4,503,695,652 (L) 135.14% (L)
550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)
550,354,609 (L) 16.51% (1)

a2
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2. CGNPC-URC holds 100% of the issued share capital of China
Uranium Development. Therefore, CGNPC-URC is deemed
to be interested in 4,503,695,652 Shares by virtue of its
shareholding of China Uranium Development.

3. CGNPC holds 100% of the equity interests of CGNPC-URC.
Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest held by
CGNPC-URC.

4, The long position represents (i) the 1,670,000,000 Shares

held by China Uranium Development (i) the interests in the
2,608,695,652 Shares to be allotted and issued upon the full
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the convertible
bonds in the principle amount of HK$600,000,000 at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.23 issued by the Company on 18
August 2011 (the “Convertible Bonds”), and (jii) the interest
in the 225,000,000 Shares held under the Share Charge as
stated in note 1 above.

5. China Uranium Development and Silver Grant International
Industrial Limited (“Silver Grant”) entered into a subscription
agreement dated 23 March 2012 (the “Subscription
Agreement”). Upon completion of the Subscription Agreement
on 1 June 2012, China Uranium Development had issued
and Silver Grant had subscribed for an exchangeable bond in
the principal amount of HK$776,000,000 (the “Exchangeable
Bond”), pursuant to which Silver Grant can exercise the
exchange right (the “Exchange Right”) at the exchange price
of HK$1.41 (subject to adjustment) to request China Uranium
Development to transfer to it the shares of the Company held
by China Uranium Development. Assuming that Silver Grant
fully exercise the Exchange Right, China Uranium Development
will transfer an aggregate of 550,354,609 Shares (representing
approximately 16.51% of the then existing share capital of the
Company) to Silver Grant.

6. The letter “L” denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in
the shares. The letter “S” denotes the person’s/entity’s short
position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person
as at 31 December 2014 who had an interest or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHT
TO SUBSCRIBE FOR SHARES

Save as disclosed in the annual report, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executive (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares, warrants or debentures (if
applicable) of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Framework agreement entered into between CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co., Ltd (“CGNPC-URC”) and the
Company (the “Framework Agreement”)

On 21 October 2011, the Company and CGNPC-URC entered
into the Framework Agreement in relation to the sale of natural
uranium (the “Old Framework Agreement”) by the Group
to CGNPC-URC from 28 November 2011 to 31 December
2018 (the “Effective Period”). Pursuant to the Old Framework
Agreement, the Group agreed to sell and CGNPC-URC agreed
to purchase and purchase on behalf of certain End Users (as
defined in the Old Framework Agreement) certain amount of
natural uranium during the Effective Period.

On 15 October 20183, the Company and CGNPC-URC
entered into the New Framework Agreement in relation to the
sale of natural uranium by the Group to CGNPC-URC from
9 December 2013 to 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the
New Framework Agreement, the Group has agreed to sell
and CGNPC-URC has agreed to purchase and purchase on
behalf of certain End Users (as defined in the New Framework
Agreement) certain amount of natural uranium during the
Effective Period.
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CGNPC-URC is the sole shareholder of China Uranium
Development, a controlling shareholder of the Company, which
holds approximately 50.11% equity interest in the Company.
CGNPC-URC is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules and the transaction contemplated
under the New Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage
ratios on an annual basis is more than 5% and the annual
consideration is more than HK$10,000,000, the Sale of
Natural Uranium is subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the New Framework Agreement, the transaction
value cannot exceed the following Annual Cap Amounts
(“Annual Cap Amounts”) in respect of the Continuing
Connected Transaction for each of the three years ending on
31 December 2016.

For the year ended on
31 December 2014

HZE2014F12831H

For the year ending on
31 December 2015
B£E2015F12H31H
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For the year ending on
31 December 2016
BIE2016 12 A31H

ILEE IEEFRE

HK$3,463,200,000
3,463,200,000;8 7T

HK$3,463,200,000
3,463,200,000 % 7T

Details of the New Framework Agreement have been disclosed
in the Company’s circular dated 19 November 2013.
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Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the EGM held on 9 December
2013, the entering into of the New Framework Agreement,
the proposed Annual Cap Amounts and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company.

Revolving loan facility agreement between the Company
and China Uranium Development

On 15 October 2012, the Company as lender and China
Uranium Development as borrower entered into the revolving
loan facility agreement (the “Old Facility Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Company provides a revolving loan facility of
an amount not exceeding US$100 million (approximately
HK$780 million) (the “Old Revolving Loan”) to China Uranium
Development for a term of one year commencing from the
date of passing the relevant resolutions at the EGM held on 15
November 2012.

The Company is owned as to approximately 50.11% equity
interest by China Uranium Development and accordingly
China Uranium Development is a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Therefore, China Uranium Development is a
connected person of the Company. The entering into of the
Old Facility Agreement and the provision of the Old Revolving
Loan to China Uranium Development constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The interest rate of each Single Loan (as defined in the Old
Facility Agreement) shall be calculated from the Drawdown
Date (as defined in the Old Facility Agreement) until the full
repayment date of the Single Loan on the basis of 360 days per
annum in the following ways:

(@) 1 month LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is less
than 3 months;
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(b) 3 months LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is
between 3-6 months; or

(c) 6 months LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is more
than 6 months.

If the Single Loan Period (as defined in the Old Facility
Agreement) is less than or equal to 6 months, all interest
accrued shall be paid in a lump sum on the Single Loan Due
Date (as defined in the Old Facility Agreement). If the Single
Loan Period is more than 6 months: (i) depending on actual
circumstances, in the event that the Drawdown Date of that
Single Loan falls between 21 December to 20 June (both dates
inclusive), all interest accrued during the First Interest Period
shall be paid on 21 June; in the event that the Drawdown Date
of that Single Loan falls between 21 June to 20 December (both
dates inclusive), all interest accrued during the First Interest
Period shall be paid on 21 December; and (ii) after the First
Interest Period, depending on actual circumstances, all interest
accrued during Other Interest Period shall be paid on 21 June
and 21 December of each year. However, all interest accrued
during the Final Interest Period shall be paid on the Single Loan
Due Date.

China Uranium Development was not required to provide any
guarantee or charge any assets to the Company under the
Old Facility Agreement because the Company considers the
relevant risk of default as extremely low.

The purpose of the continuing connected transaction is to
enhance the return on investment on the Company’s surplus
cash resources while maintaining the flexibility of cash flow for
any further business development or investment opportunities.
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On 15 October 2013, the Company as lender and China
Uranium Development as borrower entered into the revolving
loan facility agreement (the “New Facility Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Company provides a revolving loan facility of
an amount not exceeding US$150 million (approximately
HK$1,170 million) (the “New Revolving Loan”) to China Uranium
Development for a term commencing from 9 December 2013,
the date on which the New Facility Agreement became effective
and ended on 15 November 2014. After the last loan facility
agreement ended in November 2014, the Company did not
re-enter into a new loan facility agreement with China Uranium
Development.

For the period between 9 December 2013 and 31 December
2013, the Cap Amount of the New Revolving Loan is US$150
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,170 million).

According to the ordinary resolution passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the EGM held on 9 December
2013, which approved the Revolving Loan Facility Agreement,
the proposed Cap Amount and the transaction contemplated
thereunder.

Framework agreement entered into between the
Company and CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited
(“Huasheng”) for the provision of intra-group
financial services (the “Financial Services Framework
Agreement”)

On 22 January 2014, the Company and Huasheng entered into
a conditional Financial Services Framework Agreement for the
provision of intra-group financial services.

Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions precedent, the
Financial Services Framework Agreement shall have a term of
three financial years commencing from 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016.
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Pursuant to the Financial Services Framework Agreement, the
Group may from time to time deposit sums with Huasheng.
The terms and conditions of such deposits shall be subject to
arm’s length negotiations between the Group and Huasheng.
Huasheng shall pay interest on such deposits. The interest
payable by Huasheng to the Group shall be calculated with
reference to the deposits interest rate as announced by other
independent commercial banks in Hong Kong (such as The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited or Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited) from time to time but at any
time such interest rate shall be (i) equal to or higher than the
relevant interest rate offered by Huasheng to other subsidiaries
of the CGNPC (other than members of the Group) in similar
arrangement; and (i) equal to or higher than the deposits
interest rate as announced by other independent commercial
banks in Hong Kong (such as The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited or Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited) from time to time in similar arrangement. The payment
terms of the interest shall be determined between the Group
and Huasheng upon making deposits.

The estimated annual caps (the “Annual Caps”) for the
maximum outstanding balance for the deposits placed by the
Group with Huasheng for the three financial years ending on 31
December 2016 are set out below:

For the year ended on
31 December 2014

BZ20145F HZE20155F
12831 BLLEEE 12831 BLLEEE
US$178 million US$178 million
178,000,000 =7t 178,000,000 7T
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As Huasheng is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGNPC, the
ultimate controller indirectly holding approximately 50.11%
equity interests in the Company, the entering into of the
Financial Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the intra-group financial
services and the Annual Caps) constitute a continuing
connected transaction on the part of the Company and
are subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the relevant percentage ratios exceed 25%
but are below 75%, the entering into of the Financial Services
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder (including the intra-group financial services and
the Annual Caps) shall also constitute a major transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and will be subject to
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval at the
EGM.

According to the ordinary resolution passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the EGM held on 21 March
2014, which approved the entering into of the financial services
framework agreement and the contemplated transactions
thereunder (including the internal financial services of the group
and the annual caps).

The Company and Semizbay-U entered into the Purchase
Contract for purchase of Natural Uranium by the Group
from Semizbay-U

As at 16 October 2014, the Company (as purchaser) and
Semizbay-U (as seller) entered into the Purchase Contract for
purchase of Natural Uranium by the Group from Semizbay-U.
Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the Group has agreed to
purchase and Semizbay-U has agreed to sell 588 (+1%) tons
Natural Uranium during the term of the Purchase Contract
subject to the order(s) placed and to be placed by the Group.
The Purchase Contract shall have a term commencing from the
effective date of the Purchase Contract to 31 December 2014
(both dates inclusive).
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Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the price of Natural
Uranium shall be determined after arm’s length negotiations
on normal commercial terms with reference to the arithmetic
average prices of the spot price indicator published by
TradeTech (http://www.uranuium.info/) and Ux Consulting
Company LLC (http://www.uxc.com). The proposed Annual
Cap Amount in respect of the purchase of Natural Uranium
contemplated under the Purchase Contract for the year ended
31 December 2014 is US$65,000,000.

As Semizbay-U is owned as to 49% by Beijing Sino-Kazakh
Uranium, which is in turn 100% owned by CGNPC-URC, the
controlling shareholder indirectly holding approximately 50.11%
equity interests in the Company, therefore, Semizbay-U is
a connected person of the Company, the entering into of
the purchase contract and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute a continuing connected transaction on
the part of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the relevant percentage ratios on an annual basis are
more than 5%, the Purchase Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder are subject to the announcement,
reporting and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. Upon completion of the
acquisition, as Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium will become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Semizbay-U will cease
to be a connected person of the Company.

According to the ordinary resolution passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the EGM held
on 16 October 2014, which approved the entering into of the
purchase contract between the Company (as purchaser) and
Semizbay-U (as seller) for purchase of Natural Uranium by the
Group from Semizbay-U (including the annual caps).
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Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed and confirm that the

continuing connected transactions set out above have been

entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The auditors of the Company have also reviewed these

continuing connected transactions and confirmed to the Board
that these transactions:

1.

have been approved by the Board;

have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions;

are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group
(if the transactions involve provision of goods or services
by the Group); and

have not exceeded the relevant annual caps disclosed
in previous announcements.

The Board acknowledged receipt of the auditors’ confirmation

letter dated 26 March 2015 which confirms the matters as
required by Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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Related party transactions set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 constitute continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirement
set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 16 May
2014 in relation to the acquisition of Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium.
Capitalized terms used in this section shall have meanings given to
them in the said announcement. On 16 May 2014, the Board approved
the share purchase agreement entered into between the Company (as
purchaser) and CGNPC-URC (as seller), pursuant to which CGNPC-
URC conditionally agreed to sell and the Company conditionally agreed
to purchase the equity (representing the entire registered capital of Beijing
Sino-Kazakh Uranium) at the purchase price of US$133 milion (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,030.75 million).

As at the date of the share purchase agreement, Beijing Sino-Kazakh
Uranium held a 49% partnership interest in Semizbay-U. Through its
indirect interest in Semizbay-U, CGNPC-URC is entitled to acquire the
Off-take Quantity, being 49% of Semizbay-U’s total annual uranium
production pursuant to the Off-take Agreement. CGNPC-URC
undertook to irrevocably and exclusively designate the Group, from the
Completion Date, to purchase the Off-take Quantity from Semizbay-U
for the entire term of the Off-take Agreement. Upon Completion, the
Company will, through Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium, hold a 49%
partnership interest in Semizbay-U. Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium will
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Semizbay-U will
not become a subsidiary of the Company and accordingly its financial
statements will not be consolidated into those of the Group.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio calculated pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the acquisition exceeds 25% but
is less than 100%, the acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14.06(3) of the Listing Rules. In addition, China
Uranium Development, a subsidiary of CGNPC-URGC, is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. As such, CGNPC-URC is a connected
person of the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4). The Acquisition also
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and is subject to
the reporting, announcement and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

Supplemental Deed to Subscription Agreement

Reference is made to the announcement dated 18 February 2014 in
relation to the Supplemental Deed to Subscription Agreement. The
parties to the Subscription Agreement have on 18 February 2014
entered into the Supplemental Deed to vary certain terms of the
Subscription Agreement. Unless otherwise defined, capitalized words
used in this section shall have the same meaning as defined in the
circular dated 23 May 2011 and the announcement dated 18 February
2014 published by the Company.

As disclosed in the circular dated 23 May 2011, on 1 April 2011,
the controlling shareholder charged 450,000,000 shares in favor
of the subscriber (“Charged Shares”) pursuant to the terms of
the Share Charge to guarantee the obligations of the controlling
shareholder under the Subscription Agreement, including but not
limited to the obligations of the controlling shareholder to pay the First
Reimbursement Amount to the Second Reimbursement Amount, and
any amounts due under the Indemnity or losses suffered as a result of
any breach of warranties. The Share Charge would be released on the
later of the date of expiry of the Reimbursement Period or the date on
which the controlling shareholder has discharged all its obligations to
pay the Second Reimbursement Amount.

By discussion, the parties to the Subscription Agreement had on 18
February 2014 entered into a supplemental deed (“Supplemental
Deed”) to vary certain terms of the Subscription Agreement
including without limitation, the following terms: (a) the definition of
“Reimbursement Period” in the Subscription Agreement was amended
to mean “from the Closing Date to (i) 31 December 2014; or (i) the date
on which the Company no longer holds legal or beneficial interest in
the subsidiaries, whichever is earlier, or any other date to be agreed
amongst the parties”; (b) the definition of “Settlement Date” in the
Subscription Agreement was amended to mean “(i) the expire of the
Reimbursement Period: or (i) the date the controlling shareholder fully
satisfies its payment obligations pursuant to clauses 7.2.2 and 7.2.3
of the Subscription Agreement (if relevant) (whichever is earlier)”; (c)
225,000,000 Charged Shares would be released and in consideration,
the controlling shareholder and the Company will fulfill all their
respective obligations and responsibilities pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement; (d) the remaining 225,000,000 Charged Shares would
continue to be charged to guarantee that the founders, the controlling
shareholders and the Company would fulfill their respective obligations
and responsibilities pursuant to the Subscription Agreement.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1.

Entering into the second supplemental deed to subscription
agreement

Reference is made to the announcement dated 19 March 2015
in relation to, among other things, (i) the Share Subscription;
and (i) the CB Subscription. Capitalized terms used in this
section shall have the meanings given to them in the said
announcement.

Upon the approval by the Board on 19 March 2015, the
parties agreed to further extend the New Reimbursement
Period by entering into a second supplemental deed (“Second
Supplemental Deed”) to the Subscription Agreement dated
19 March 2015. Pursuant to the Second Supplemental Deed,
the definition of Reimbursement Date has been amended to
“from the Closing Date to () the end of 14 calendar months
from the date on which the Company ceases to hold any
legal or beneficial interests in any Subsidiaries; or (i) the date
on which the Company ceases to hold any legal or beneficial
interests in any Subsidiaries, and the liabilities the Company
has or may have in respect of declaration and/or payment of
Tax in any Relevant Jurisdictions in relation to the disposal
of all or part of the interests in any Subsidiaries have been
fully discharged or performed, and all the tax payable by the
Company (in particular the liabilities of declaration and payment
of tax the Company may have in respect of the performance
and completion of any disposal transactions (if any) relating
to all or any interests in the Subsidiaries and the tax to be
decided (including but not limited to that in accordance with
the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation
to Strengthening the Management of Enterprise Income Tax
for Equity Transfer of Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han
[2009] No0.698) and the announcement in relation to Certain
Issues concerning Enterprise Income Tax for Indirect Transfer
of Assets by Non-resident Enterprises (State Administration
of Taxation announcement 2015 No.7)) has been fully paid or
waived, whichever is later, or any other date to be agreed by the
parties”.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Disposal of all the equity interests in Yugofoil Holdings Limited

Reference is made to the announcement dated 25 March
2015. Capitalized terms used in this section shall have the
meanings given to them in the said announcement. On 25
March 2015, the Company as the vendor and Bright Future
as the Purchaser entered into the SP Agreement, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of the Target Company. The Company has
agreed to assign and the purchaser has agreed to accept the
assignment of the interests in the Sale Loan to the Purchaser,
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$101,250,000.

To secure the payment of the Consideration by the Purchaser,
the Guarantor entered into a deed of guarantee in favour of the
Company on the payment obligation by the Purchaser under
the SP Agreement.

Assets to be disposed of:

(1) the Sale Shares, representing the Company’s entire
holding in the Target Company held by the Company,
and also the 100% of the issued share capital of the
target company; and

2 the interests in the Sale Loan, being the entire sum
owing by the target company to the Company as at the
date of SP Agreement.

It is expected that the Company will receive a net proceed
of approximately HK$100,237,000 from the Disposal. The
Company intends to use the proceeds from the Disposal as
general working capital of the Group.

Immediately after the completion, the Target Company will
cease to be a subsidiary of the Company, and the Company will
no longer hold interest of the Target Company Group.

Directors’ Report
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Major transactions and connected transactions in relation to the
acquisition of Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium

Reference is made to 29 December 2014 regarding the delay in
completion of the major transaction and connected transaction
in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity of Beijing Sino-
Kazakh Uranium. Capitalized terms used in this section shall
have the same meaning as defined in the circular dated 30 June
2014 and the announcement dated 16 May 2014 published by
the Company.

As additional time is required for the Company’s fulfilment of
the conditions precedent (the “CPs”) under the Share Purchase
Agreement, the Company and CGNPC-URC have agreed to
postpone the Long Stop Date to 31 March 2015 according to the
Share Purchase Agreement.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 42%
— five largest suppliers combined 99%

Sales
—the largest customer 92%
— five largest customers combined 96%

CGNPC-URC, the largest customer of the Company, is the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. CGNPC-URC is a connected person of
the Company. Mr. Yu Zhiping, an ED and the chief executive officer of
the Company, Mr. He Zuyuan, an ED and the executive vice president
of the Company, Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, a NED and chairman, Mr. Chen
Qiming, a NED and Mr. Yin Engang (appointed on 1 June 2014) are all
the directors of China Uranium Development and/or the director and/
or the senior management of CGNPC-URC at different material time
throughout 2014. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 21 May 2014, the Company (as service customer) and CGNPC-
URC (as service provider) entered into “Shared Administrative Services
Agreement” for providing shared administrative services to the
Company by CGNPC-URC.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2014, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may cause any
significant competition with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has not made any charitable donations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report, the Company
believes that the number of securities of the Company which are in
the hands of the public is higher than the relevant prescribed minimum
percentage.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
Zhou Zhenxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZEE AR AR

BEESH

R2014F58218 ARAR(IEABESR
BR#5 77 ) BArh E iz i B R (1R RRISIRHt
7 ) BhieE MR EREITHREARBKE 2
(HATERBEHE)

EENBEER o ER

2014%F - EF « ARRIERBELFES
BzBMEALT(EER ETHRAD) HmER
NEBEBEX LI EEREMENTF
EEHEE R - MEMZEZEAL
EZR 55 @ JR 4 o) AT R L IR LA R S5 2R o

RERE
IAREER - ARE LR R
R

DWMFRE

RARETZRANKRERATTES - 1R
BARAAAGEMARRES A
MAFRER  ARFBEARALRAEAR
/NC]

N

BEHRNBESRERETNRERSD
5d

D

HZE2014F 12 A31 HILFENGEETH
HECEHREKPH(EE) SR EHAA
BRAREZ o EXFM(ER) E5HAIE
BRBRARSERER - EEEKILFE
EREERFBFAS LERET -

EEEEHD
1
AixE

FB - 20156FE3H27H



Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/[F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Ee

Shineﬂ)mg

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
HEZEEERATE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN Mining
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 195, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Ino[ependent Auditor’s Report
B 2R E RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEsRkAMEEIER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
Notes  HK$000 HK$'000
B aE F#ET AT
Revenue EEE 8 1,243,545 796,594
Cost of sales SHEE AR (1,047,545) (643,582)
Gross profit EF 196,000 153,012
Other operating income Hih & A 8 24,644 20,730
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT Z WS 33 - 6
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO HEAX (18,999) (9,569)
Administrative expenses TE RS (136,325) (90,271)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of R - HE&
property, plant and equipment SR EEE 18 (1,521) (942)
Changes in fair value of investment properties & ¥ZE AR EEH) 19 (3,232) (12,646)
Finance costs A& AL AN 10 (28,802) (27,292)
Profit before taxation BB B & A 31,765 33,028
Income tax expense iz 11 (28,114) (16,978)
Profit for the year REZ A 12 3,651 16,050
Profit for the year attributable to: T AT FEGAREE A
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7 2N 3,820 16,365
Non-controlling interests IR R (169) (3195)
3,651 16,050
Earnings per share FREF 14
Basic HR HKO0.11 HKO0.49
cents &1l cents /&1L
Diluted E HKO.11 HK0.49

cents &1l cents &1L

76 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GelEsERkHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Profit for the year REERF 3,651 16,050
Other comprehensive (expense) income Emzm () Ka

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently Higsi Rl HiEE

to profit or loss: BmrIAE
Exchange differences arising on translating ~ #ESINEFEELE 2

foreign operations EHEE

(Loss) gain arising during the year AERES 2 (BE) K& (943) 5,239
Other comprehensive (expense) income AFEHME2E (AR Kk

for the year (943) 5,239
Total comprehensive income for the year REERHENEETE 2,708 21,289
Total comprehensive income for the THALEEAFERH

year attributable to: IS 4aEE

Owners of the Company RARER A 2,865 21,505

Non-controlling interests PR = (157) (216)

2,708 21,289
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

me B RR

As at 31 December 2014 #,E2014F12 A31H I FE

2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets B EE 17 149 212
Property, plant and equipment L E YN ] 18 41,688 45,578
Investment properties "EME 19 69,809 73,312
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights T {FREBENFHAEZRE 20 18,860 19,265
Goodwill RS 21 - =
130,506 138,367
Current assets REEE
Inventories =78 22 32,536 21,590
Loan receivable from a shareholder FEWR—ZRENER 23 - 248,082
Trade and other receivables FEUERI R A GRIE 24 226,786 213,456
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights ~ +Hbff ARETERNAEZRIE 20 407 409
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary U —ER R B ATIZIAE 25 1,299,336 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRIRE 26 225,626 1,030,491
1,784,691 1,514,028
Total assets EEHARE 1,915,197 1,652,395
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERR R EMENRIE 27 242,447 34,586
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary E—RERZRKBARRE 25 2,821 -
Amount due to an intermediate FEAS — 8 R R AR A Rk IE
holding company 28 3,803 =
Amount due to a related company FEA —REIREEE A R IR 29 11,856 -
Value added tax payable FETIZ(ET = 289
Income tax payable FETFR1SH: 12,575 7,582
273,502 42,457
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,511,189 1,471,571
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRHERS 1,641,695 1,609,938
78 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

As at 31 December 2014 H,=2014F12 A31 0 I EF

2014 2013
2014 5 20134
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT T
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital &R 30 33,326 33,326
Reserves e 1,046,317 1,043,452
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE AELER
the Company 1,079,643 1,076,778
Non-controlling interests FEiERER 1,641 1,798
Total equity EREE 1,081,284 1,078,576
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Convertible bonds A RIE & 31 549,507 520,705
Deferred tax liabilities FELERIBEE 32 10,904 10,657
560,411 531,362
1,641,695 1,609,938

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 195 were HNFT76E105 B 2 58 I BHEKN 2015
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 FEZH7T BREEe I E RISETEE - I

L

March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: AN ESRREE
Yu Zhiping K& F He Zuyuan {87t
Director 2% Director &%

Annual Report 2014
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Conso[iplgted Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROREARE
Equity
componentof  Exchange Share Properties Non-
Share convertible franslation options  Reserve  Retained revaluation controlling
Share capital  premium bonds  reserve  reserve Fund  eamings reserve Total  interests
ThERES e NREf ik
Bt BHEE RA3H  EXER B REEE REEY B it i
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$ 000
Tén TEn  TEr  TEr TR TEn A TEn  TEr  TH
(Note)
(ht)
A1 Janvary 2014 R04E1A18 B3 657930 108821 82842 154 4% 120,184 9011 1,076,778 1,79 1,078,576
(Loss) proft for the year KEE (BR) - - - - - - 380 - 380 (169) 3650
Other comprehensive expenses ZFEEMZESE
for the year

Eichange dfierences g~ AE/EE
on randlating foregn EEER

operatons 22
lossarsing dung teyear  REEEA 7 KB - - - (055) - - - - (955) 12 (43
Total comprehensive (expense) A2 () Mk
income for the year 5 - - - (955) - - - - 2,865 (157) 2,108
At 31 December 2014 RO4E12ASIA 33326 657939 138827 81887 154 34495 124004 9011 1,079,643 1641 1,081,204
80 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ROREARE
Equity
componentof  Exchange Share Properties Non-
Share convertible franslation options  Reserve  Retained revaluation controlling

Share capital  premium bonds  reserve  reserve Fund  eamings reserve Total  interests

T8RRS b RER 2R

B BReEE RABH  EXGR i BREE:  RERA i it it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
fén fEr fEr  fEr  fEr  fEr TR TR TEn TEn

(Note)

(=)
At 1 January 2013 RO1E1A1H 33326 667939 138827 11102 164 4% 103819 9011 1,065273 2014 1,067,287
Proftfoso)fortheyear ~ REREF(EE) - - - - - - 1635 S (X (15 16050
Other comprehensiencome. - ZEER2 Tz
for the year

Eichange dfierences g~ AE/EE
on randlating foregn EEER

operatons 22

Ganarisngduing theyear  REEEAEZU - - - 5 - - - AT » 5
Total comprehensive ncome  AEE2ENE ()

(expense) for the year am = = - 5140 - - 1636 - 50 216 21,289
At 31 December 2013 RO13E12A31A 336 6790 138827 82,842 154 4% 120,184 9011 1,076,778 1798 1,078,076

Note: Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have BisE : RPEEARLRBE([FE])RZZHBAR

appropriated 10% of the profit to reserve fund. When the balance of BREMNZ 10% BAREESR - EEEREHR
such a reserve reached 50% of the respective companies’ registered ATESERIET SR AR EARE 50% B -
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The reserve fund is AITNBRE - FEESERERHEARZ
required to be retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for specific IRB AERERE -
purposes.
Annual Report 2014 81
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

2014 2013
20145 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
THT FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before taxation BREE AR 31,765 33,028
Adjustments for: HE

BHEVRE 62 61
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BT RERNEER

on land use rights 407 402
MmE - BERRETE

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant

82

and equipment 4,586 4,855
Changes in fair value of investment BENME AR ELE)
properties 3,232 12,646
Finance costs BEKAR 28,802 27,292
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERTB ARz s = )
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BRWE - BEKER
property, plant and equipment REEE 1,521 942
Bank interest income PATHEMA (3,679) (12,671)
Loan interest income from a shareholder —BREZEFHEBA (3,560) (7,854)
Interest income from overdue trade receivable R B 2 B A W BR X
from an intermediate holding company ZFBMA (580) (158)
Loan interest income from a fellow subsidiary BEMB AR ZEZH U A (16,186) =
Reversal of impairment loss previously S RTREL b FE OB TR M
recognised on other receivables AEBERED (221) -
Net loss on disposal of property, HENME  BEMXEEEFE
plant and equipment 886 193
Write-down of inventories WREE 3,507 3,214
Operating cash flow before movements HEBESEIA
in working capital RERENE 50,542 61,944
Increase in inventories TR (14,477) (12,672)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables  FEUER T % E 4 MR IE (380 ) SR 4> (11,476) 49,021
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables R 15T BR SN EL £ P < SRR 0 (R 4>) 207,861 (185,231)
Decrease in value added tax payable FERTIEERR D (289) (654)
Increase in amount due to an intermediate FERT AR EIRAR 1 B SR AN
holding company 3,803 =
Increase in amount due to a related company e RAEE A R A IR AT 11,856 -
Cash from (used in) operations RELEME (A Re 247,820 (87,592)
Hong Kong tax paid BAEBHIE (23,191) (39,777)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRRCEMEH = (111)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING BEEBHE (FA) REFE
ACTIVITIES 224,629 (127,480)

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEBREETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

2014 2013
20145 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(i3 THT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Repayment from a fellow subsidiary REMBRARER 5,319,812 -
Loans repayment received from a shareholder B —RIRR 2 BB R 248,082 1,467,487
Interest income from a fellow subsidiary EESEYNIPAISE N 14,733 =
Bank interest income received BRI TH B A 3,586 12,294
Loan interest received from a shareholder BRI EHFIE 3,560 13,164
Interest income from overdue trade R AR B
receivables from an intermediate FEBER R 2 FI S A
holding company 517 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BENME
plant and equipment TS 30R 366 388
Deposits advanced to a fellow subsidiary RRZMBARHRGR 2 ke (6,619,607) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BE &K (974) (827)
Loans advanced to a shareholder M — AR R 2 B = (940,078)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBAR A RLFR
subsidiaries (net of bank balances (MBS ZBTEER
and cash disposed of) Be) 33 - (653)
Decrease in pledged bank balances EEBRITERRD = 644
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING RETH (FTH) i
ACTIVITIES Be&FE (1,029,925) 552,419
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRSSEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS (BL) 288 (805,296) 424,939
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDZRLRERS
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEER 1,030,491 604,671
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exga) 2 431 881
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RELCRERBRLEEER -
OF THE YEAR, represented by unpledged B RRTET LIRS
bank balances and cash 225,626 1,030,491
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GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liabilities. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its parent is FEHEZEREAFRE A7 (China
Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China Uranium
Development”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of # FEix 22 R AR A 7] (CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co. Ltd.) (“CGNPC-URC”), which is in
turn a subsidiary of AR EZEEAR A (China General
Nuclear Power Corporation) (‘CGNPC”). CGNPC is the ultimate
parent of the Company. Both CGNPC-URC and CGNPC were
established in the PRC and state-owned enterprises.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are selling, distributing
and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and food products,
property investment and trading of natural uranium.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Hong Kong whose functional
currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”) and HK$ respectively, the
functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
(‘USD”). As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors
of the Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in HKS.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”) and Interpretations
(“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

CGN Mining Company Limited
IR AR A 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge

Accounting

Hong Kong (International Levies
Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee)
(“HK(IFRIC)”) — Int 21

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment
entity and introduce an exception to consolidating subsidiaries
for an investment entity, except where the subsidiaries provide
services that relate to the investment entity’s investment
activities. Under the amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment
entity is required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be
met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional investment
management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have
been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity, the directors of the
Company consider that the application of the amendments has
had no impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (Continued)

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
Group has assessed whether certain of its financial assets and
financial liabilities qualify for offset based on the criteria set out
in the amendments and concluded that the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 36 require
disclosures on additional information about the fair value
measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired assets
is based on fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount is fair value less costs of disposal, an entity shall
disclose the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the
fair value measurement of the asset or cash generating unit
is categorised in its entirety. The Group is required to make
additional disclosures for Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy:

o a description of the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value less costs of disposals. If there
is any change in valuation techniques, the fact and the
reason should also be disclosed;

° each key assumption on which management has based
its determination of fair value less costs of disposal;

o the discount rates used in the current and previous
measurement if fair value less costs of disposal is
measured using a present value technique.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Continued)

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
directors of the Company consider that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 36 has had no material impact on the
disclosures in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 39 Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS
39 introduce an exception to the requirements for the
discontinuation of hedge accounting in HKAS 39 if specific
conditions are met. The amendments to HKAS 39 state that
the novation of a hedging instrument is not be considered an
expiration or termination if the novation (a) is required by laws
or regulations; (b) results in a central counterparty or an entity
acting in a similar capacity becoming the new counterparty
to each of the parties to the novated derivative and (c) does
not result in changes to the terms of the original over-the-
counter derivatives other than the changes directly attributable
to the novation. For all other novations outside the scope
of the exemption, an entity should assess if they meet the
derecognition criteria and the conditions for continuation of
hedge accounting.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of the amendments has had no impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the first
time in the current year. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses the issue
as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by
government. The interpretation defines a levy, and specifies that
the obligating event that gives rise to the liability is the activity
that triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by legislation.
The interpretation provides guidance on how different levy
arrangements should be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies
that neither economic compulsion nor the going concern
basis of financial statements preparation implies that an entity
has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by
operating in a future period.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this interpretation has had no material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positons for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

CGN Mining Company Limited
PR ARA A

Financial Instruments*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®

Disclosure Initiative?

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception®
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further
amended to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in the financial statements. A finalised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all the
requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous years
with limited amendments to the classification and measurement
by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain financial
assets. The finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an
“expected credit loss” model for impairment assessments.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

o In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were added.
Those requirements eliminate the threshold that was
in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely information
is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o HKFRS 9 introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging
their financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a
principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 looks at whether
a risk component can be identified and measured
and does not distinguish between financial items and
non-financial items. The new model also enables
an entity to use information produced internally for
risk management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in HKAS
39 using metrics that are designed solely for accounting
purposes. The new model also includes eligibility criteria
but these are based on an economic assessment of
the strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with
those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it
reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets, the directors of the
Company consider that it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 specifies the accounting for regulatory deferral
account balances that arise from rate-regulated activities. The
standard is applicable only to first-time adopters of HKFRSs
who recognised regulatory deferral account balances under
their previous generally accepted accounting principles (the
“GAAP”). HKFRS 14 permits eligible first-time adopters of
HKFRSs to continue their previous GAAP rate-regulated
accounting policies, with limited changes, and requires
separate presentation of regulatory deferral account balances
in the statement of financial position and statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Disclosures are also
required to identify the nature of, and risks associated with, the
form of rate regulation that has given rise to the recognition of
regulatory deferral account balances.

HKFRS 14 is effective for an entity’s first annual HKFRS financial
statements for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

Step 1 identify the contract with the customer;

Step 2 identify the performance obligations in the contract;

Step 3  determine the transaction price;

Step 4 allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

Step 5 recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
HK(FRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, HK (IFRIC) — Int
15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, HK (IFRIC) —
Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers, and HK (SIC) — Int 31
Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services when
it becomes effective.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition” and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss.
The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2014.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have ‘similar economic characteristics’; and (i) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets
to the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment
assets are regularly provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a
manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation
is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of
such compensation is not required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below. The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify
that changing from one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal
through sale or disposal through distribution to owners) to the
other should not be considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore
no interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 20714 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and
arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement
in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34
clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference
between the interim financial statements and wherever they
are included within the interim financial report. The other
information within the interim financial report must be available
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements
and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other
information in this manner, then the interim financial report is
incomplete.

2.

PR 397 5T R A A8 5T B B 81
s E R (RN BE
8 ) s0)

[ = R el s

BB MBI R E R 2 # 7] RAEER]
BRPBREER (F)

&BE R EER2012F 22014
FRE FEHE (E)

BRMBREENF 75 (EFTA)
BEERNSBRZRIGENBREE
2ETHEE - ERAREBETEY
BRELRE 7R FFESL RS
FHEBR R B2 EE - LARHAR
DA ELHE BRI ER 2 E
BREEFELEMEKE - I - FE
B IREERIE 7 5 (EFTAS) IhEE
BT IR R E L EARE A
HHTREERSRABZIHE
BB B RROIMFRABEE
Btz EREH

EREFHERIFE19R (BRI A)ER
SEERREFZ TS RERALZE
BatEE R IR EB AR
o Wz E¥zHEERRIERYL
EARAMS - RIZAEABHEZZ

B GETRERIE 34N o B 55
MR A (i R A
BREPATHE)  BESHE
A4S (BT R ERREZ T
BERERN P M AR (E 2
I KRR 2 R E 2 RZMA
HEt AR EIR 5 S B R
=2 EMERTIRETR P B RE
ZHREER ERERERE A FE
B - AP TR ET AR E
ER - AR BP B RERENT

%‘go

Annual Report 2014
—T—FFR

101



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H ILEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of years
of employee service, for example, employee contributions
that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.
Specifically, contributions that are linked to services are
attributed to periods of services as a negative benefit. The
amendments to HKAS 19 specifies that such negative benefit
are attributed in the same way as the gross benefit, i.e. attribute
to periods of services under the plan’s contribution formula or
on a straight-line basis.

Besides, the amendments also state that if the contributions are
independent of the number of years of employee service, such
contributions may be recognised as a reduction of the service
cost as they fall due.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKAS 19 will have no material impact on
the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based
amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate.
This presumption can be rebutted only in the following limited

circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

i) when a high correlation between revenue and the

consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define bearer
plants. Biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants
are no longer accounted for under HKAS 41, but under HKAS
16 instead. The produce growing on bearer plants continues to
be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

o As the Group does not have any biological assets,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41 will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the equity
method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in its separate financial statements. As
a result of the amendments, the entity can choose to account
for these investments either:

i) at cost;

ii) in accordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

i) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements (Continued)

As the Company does not have any investment in associates or
joint ventures, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKAS 27 will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint venture
and associate. An investing entity is required to recognise
the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets
that constitutes or contains a business to a joint venture or
associate in full. An investing entity is required to recognise
the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets that
does not constitute or contain a business to a joint venture or
associate only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that joint venture or associate.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Continued)

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 will have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments provide new guidance on how to account for
the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combination.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles
on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other
standards should be applied. The same requirements should
be applied to the formation of a joint operation if and only if an
existing business is contributed to the joint operation by one of
the parties that participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKFRS 11 will have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify the requirements when accounting
for investment entities as well as provide relief in particular
circumstances, which will reduce the costs of applying the
Standards. Specifically, a parent entity that is a subsidiary of
an investment entity is exempted from preparing consolidated
financial statements. A parent entity which is also a subsidiary
of an investment entity and hold interests in associates and joint
ventures is exempted from applying equity method if it meets all
the conditions stated in paragraph 4(a) of HKFRS 10.

Besides, the amendments clarify if an investment entity has a
subsidiary that is not itself an investment entity and whose main
purpose and activities are providing investment-related services
that relate to the investment entity’s investment activities to the
entity or other parties, it should consolidate that subsidiary. If
the subsidiary that provides the investment-related services
or activities is itself an investment entity, the investment entity
parent should measure that subsidiary at fair value through
profit or loss. If an entity that is not itself an investment entity has
an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment
entity, the entity may, when apply the equity method, retain
the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity
associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or
joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries.
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2.

B RS R R Y &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Continued)

Furthermore, if a parent that is an investment entity and has
measured all of its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss, that investment entity should present the disclosures
relating to investment entities required by HKFRS 12 in its
financial statements. If an investment entity has consolidated
its subsidiary in which the subsidiary itself is not an investment
entity and whose main purpose and activities are providing
services that relate to the investment activities of its investment
entity parent, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 apply to
financial statements in which the investment entity consolidates
that subsidiary.

As the Company does not have any investments in investment
entities, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should decide,
taking into consideration all relevant facts and circumstances,
how it aggregates information in the financial statements,
which include the notes. An entity does not require to provide
a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material. This is the case
even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or
describe them as minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method,
separated into the share of items that (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

i) an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

ii) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARD (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate and as described
above that, the application of the new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
companies ordinance (Cap 32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance (Cap 622), “Accounts and Audit”,
which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties that
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its
financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained through:
(i) a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (i) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (i) the Group’s
voting rights and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of
the above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of these elements of control stated above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwiill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below). Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEARAR

3.

FTESTTBR @)

BLEE
BB BEEE

B WEAEERERFHNZETY
BB TR K AN R, R 5T 8 & A A
RETREBRIR (A TXERE
EREREEREBERBE 5K
®) REARERFHZIELE
EZEHEINEE 2 GHERF
HHRE ARSI - (At ERFRR
BHTOETIN S WS MR AR
A AR EB R ERATEREA
BR o

g

MBERZTINELBEER S
%o

Y3~ BERRE

Mx -~ BERREREREEESN
WY S R RIS ST R
ZEREF (D BRRRERE)
THZRAERER RFAITERER
REUREEE (B ) FIRERE B 75
AR °

W% - BB MEREEE 2TERE
EETAIEAFES - WEREDERE
R AR R EER ZKAE -
AEHERFS - RREERFTES
AR B WMEBRARE R - 4
AHEB ERAEEEAR -

M - BB RREEENHERSK
EEMTERAFEEREEELR
A HE M b 42 I HERR - W
TR PS e 52 (57 B 1R th & S iR M
EzEMBENIRZREEZHE
FISRIRERREE C ZRTHE - I



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property when there is a change in use, as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
The properties revaluation reserve in respect of that item
will be transferred directly to retained earnings when it is
derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial asset and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loan receivable from a shareholder, trade and other
receivables, amount due from a fellow subsidiary and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the credit period ranging from 25
to 180 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance amount are
recognised in profit or loss. When trade and other receivables
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a fellow subsidiary/immediate holding company/related
company and convertible bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (equity component of convertible
bonds).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,£2014412 A31H I FEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in equity component of
convertible bonds until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in equity component of
convertible bonds will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in equity component of convertible bonds will be
released to the retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E20144E12 A31H It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognise its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than impairment of goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than impairment of goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group’s policy for recogrition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees (on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005)

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit
or loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005)

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles above.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period, except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments
on land use rights” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis, except for those that are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Retirement benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of tangible assets for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy
for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value
on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEAR AR

S5 B R G5 BA
BREZEZETERR

ERETINMEI 2 AEEE K
REF - NRAEZATARA M ER
RTEEBMFBECEE  BE WK
m&ﬁ-ﬂi%%’ﬁ{’ﬁﬂj#l B - R R MR
o fhEt KR RR IR BB EL
%ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂZl%f’Eﬁj ° B
FRIBILA] REA BN R FfdAT ©

1Eu+&$EI%§{E”*“ABz¢”t B
B o HERHERT BRI E R EHER]
16%#2%?5]%%%% E‘JEF‘W%%T
SNZHEER - MHETEEES
Al MR J@E’\f%ﬂ&ﬂiﬂi
HAFEI TR o
RETRERPER 2 EEHE

Bos R ftat 2 #IETASN (R T30 -
ATRARREENEAERZE
SRR B e H A iR e M MK
THRALSHELERATELEKR
1l



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities from
investment properties that were measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC were held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantively all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model recovered entirely through sale
was rebutted. As a result, the Group continues to recognise
deferred tax liabilities on change in fair value of investment
properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties will be recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual values. The determination of
the useful lives and residual values involved management’s
estimation. The Group assessed annually the residual value
and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and
if the expectation differed from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation in the year and
the estimate would be changed in the future period. As at
31 December 2014, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment was approximately HK$41,688,000 (2013:
HK$45,578,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performed ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusted credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitored collections and payments from its
customers and maintained a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience and any specific
customer collection issues that had been identified. Credit
losses had historically been within the Group’s expectations
and the Group would continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately HK$213,724,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$4,330,000
(2013: carrying amount of approximately HK$203,231,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$4,344,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables and
amount due from a fellow subsidiary

When there was objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group took into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows were less than expected, a material
impairment loss might arise. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of other receivables and amount due from a
fellow subsidiary were approximately HK$1,688,000 (2013:
HK$1,846,000) and approximately HK$1,299,336,000 (2013:
nil) repsectively.

Write down of inventories

The directors of the Company reviews an aging analysis at the
end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for finished goods based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at end of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete items. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount
of inventories was approximately HK$32,536,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$3,203,000)
(2018: carrying amount of approximately HK$21,590,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,214,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment was
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment are the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In determining
the recoverable amount, use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates is required. As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$41,688,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$56,428,000) (2013:
carrying amount of approximately HK$45,578,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$54,907,000).

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used
in the valuation have reflected the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties being
recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amount of investment
properties measured at fair value at 31 December 2014 was
approximately HK$69,809,000 (2013: HK$73,312,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets including investment properties
are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
The directors of the Company are responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. Details are set out in note 19.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the
Company work closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has recognised the tax
losses and deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$116,978,000 (2013: HK$87,786,000) and HK$67,738,000
(2013: HK$67,280,000) respectively due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. These losses relate to subsidiaries that
have a history of tax losses and the Group has not accounted
for the relevant deferred tax. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
The directors of the Company determine the deferred taxation
assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates
and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred taxation assets are
expected to be utilised. The directors of the Company will
review the assumptions and profit projections by the end of the
reporting period.

4,

FESFHE R & A
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes convertible bonds disclosed in note 31, amount due
to a fellow subsidiary/an intermediate holding company/a
related company net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings. The directors of
the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital, and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s
capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

5.

EXEREE

AEEEEEER - UHERAKE
ETEBEMFELERY  WE
REREKRE TR - NEE LRI
BEFHRFTE -

AEEZERNEREEFEE B
N —RR R BRR], —E R
NI L) N Sl €k
RAMIFE31 KB 2 Al A B 55 ) HIk
ReRREEEEB ULARRE
BARGED  EPRECHETR
K- EERREER - KRRRIES
E R EANGRE - Rt ET
—R ARREEEEEARER
HEBEAHEREMRRE - WK
BUAETTE AENEEE LGRS -

E@MITHE
ST AR

2014 2013
2014 20134
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHBT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables B e R FIE
(including bank balances and cash)  (B#FERITEFLIRD) 1,743,241 1,485,263
Financial liabilities cREE
At amortised cost e S 1= WA 809,502 554,784

CGN Mining Company Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan receivable
from a shareholder, trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and convertible bonds.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from purchases by the Group in currencies
other than the entities” functional currencies. Approximately 5%
of the Group’s purchases are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group’s entity making the
purchases. In addition, certain portion of bank balances and
cash, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

Mg E ks EE B ERBER

AEBEZFESHTARERK—
ZRENER - BRERRZH A
JEMWFIE - RITHEERIRS - JER
R R E A PRI RIS - DA AT
&H - WESHMT A ZFHBENER
MHEti%eE - B ST ABRC
[2. B B2 45 T 4% R B (5 TR B K )
XEAR)  FERREREBHEESER
B o TXHEHIIMEDRIRZERR 2
B - EREEERERZER
B2 - DAHRLR K G BUM SR EGE &
i

ERER

AEBEHHTHERER - SRR
BREAEENZEERNINGEE
BN B HEITIRE - NEEL
5% RBAREERIFLRBEZ
EERE AN BEEDIE - LoD -
ETHDRITEFERIRE - BUER
R LA YRR - DA K PR BR K
NE AN TRIR T LA E §8 2 18R
REERUIINEBEER -
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
monetary assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

B EREREBERBE
(#)

BRER(E)

TRERA KBRS RS RE
AEHREEEERAENEER
HEATEEER AN e B EEES
Z R o

Renminbi
(“RMB”)’000

HKD’000
FTXR AR®TR TR

UsD’000
Presented in: 2014 2013
HIRA 20145 20134
Assets BiE - _
Liabilities aE - (715)

2013 2014 2013
20134 2014%F 20134

841 827 382,887
(1,230)  (1,870) (764)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of RMB, USD
and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
and 0.5% (2013: 5% and 0.5%) increase or decrease in
HK$ against the RMB and USD respectively. 5% and 0.5%
(2013: 5% and 0.5%) are the sensitivity rates used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% or 0.5% (2013: 5%
or 0.5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit (2013: increase in
post-tax profit) where HK$ strengthen 5% or 0.5% (2013: 5%
or 0.5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% or 0.5% (2013:
5% or 0.5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

usD

Ei
2014 2013
20134
HK$’000
FAT

2014 5
HK$’000
FHET

sk & E - 21

Profit or loss

7.

2014

20144
HK$’000
FEx

108 21 (4)

BEEBEEEBRRBER
(#)

BRER(E)

AEBETZMPARE - ZTME
TTERRER

TRFAVNAEBEATHRIEAR
BRETABESREZES%R05%
(20134F : 5% }.0.5%) Z BUE »
ZHRELERRAETETEASR]
SN B\ B 1 1A B R A5 R B R 2 =R
B REEBERINEERAEE
£ EBEEFETE - RESD
MEBREMAEE ZINETEE
18 B R R4 HA R 4 R B AN
P& 7 5%75%0.5%(20134F : 5%k

ZEEBERMNE LA BAEEAE
5%3%0.5% (20134 : 5%3%0.5%)
T 45 B B B2 18 0% A1 2 718 (2012
F:BRBEENFIR) o WBT
HBBE®EES%3%0.5% (2013
F :5%340.5%) " BEERFEK
HRzEEZE -

RMB HKD
NS BT
2013 2014
20134F 20144
HK$'000 HK$’000
AT FTHER

2013
20134
HK$000
FAT

1,595

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

EEERR  BRFER AR
ERRFEANER - MEREDITIL
THEEBEINER -
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate bank balances and loan receivable from
a shareholder and amount due from a fellow subsidiary and
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider other
necessary actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances and cash and loan receivable from a
shareholder at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$6,366,000
(2013: HK$6,188,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank balance and loan
receivables.

CGN Mining Company Limited
L AR AR

MEREREERERBE

AR E

AEBBET BRITERIER—
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RAFHAEE RS REN AR -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of
each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
attributable to the loan receivable from a shareholder and
amount due from a fellow subsidiary to be insignificant as the
default risk of the advance to the shareholder and the fellow
subsidiary is limited as the shareholder and the fellow subsidiary
has sufficient net assets to repay its debts and a good history
of repayment. The Group does not expect to incur a significant
loss for uncollected loan receivable from a shareholder and
amount due from a fellow subsidiary.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100%
(2013: 100%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2014.

MEREREERERBE

FERR

R2014F12 8318 ARG H %
EEERITEAMRSASERZ I E
BrzeEaEERBRTIRELEVE
RRRFESERE RReMEE
ZEREE -

RBEERRRERE  AEEE
BECZR—XEK  AEEER
5% BEHEEMAMERRER -
FECR B W DB ERR TR Z B © It
S REEE NS S RS
A & BRI U R SR 2 AT IR Bt - B
R AU B S B R SR (E S
e

HRERERRMERRE RHE
EFEERER - mEBEERT
BRI - RBXTERRKFRMM B
NAZENRBRAR - AARAE
R I B M B SR R e e W ) 3%
88 X RIS IR PSR Y 1S B R I
TEX  MAKERERTSEK
PSR R e e W ) 2 B BB 2 R 2 3K
BZAWEISRELEARR °

AEBEZERTHEERERRER
EXERASEHFRFEH - hRh2014
F12 531 HEWERFEFE100%
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Besides, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 91%
(2013: 96%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2014 was due from the Group’s largest customer within
natural uranium trading segment. However, the directors of
the Company consider the credit risk to be insignificant as the
major debtor was intermediate holding company with good
creditworthiness.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

7.

B EREREBERBE
(#)

FERR(E)

Liquidity risk tables B E % RS
Carrying
amount Total
at 31 Less than undiscounted
December 1 year 1-5 years cash flows
M12A31R KR
ZEEE 15/ 155 HERENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
2014 2014%
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ FEfT£&RERE
Trade and other payables ERERZ R 241,515 241,515 - 241,515
AR08
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary — JERTRIZHTE 2,821 2,821 - 2,821
NSV
Amount due to an intermediate JE R R AR 3,803 3,803 - 3,803
holding company RNEFE
Amount due to arelated company  FEREERE A FIZUE 11,856 11,856 - 11,856
Convertible bonds R ES 549,507 - 600,000 600,000
809,502 259,995 600,000 859,995
2013 2013
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ FEfT£ERERE
Trade and other payables ERERZ R 34,079 34,079 - 34,079
AR08
Convertible bonds Bk ES 520,705 - 600,000 600,000
554,784 34,079 600,000 634,079
Fair value ARE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded

at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values due to their immediate or short-

term maturities.

ERMEENERBEIAAETIR
BAREBEANRRASRED
FEETE °

RRREERR - WHHKAELR
BUMBHRINEZ EMEE TR
BEZEEEEREALERS U
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #;£2014F12 A31H L FE
8. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING 8. BEERHMEKEWA
INCOME

Revenue represents amount received and receivable from sales SEEIEFRNNGES - 2
- B ETRKBHEEEmR
B A R R A2 B W E YR
IH - ARSI ABERE - RAFE

Rz Wz T

of pharmaceutical and food products and natural uranium, net
of returns, discounts allowed and sales related taxes, and gross
rental income during the year. Revenues recognised during the

year are as follows:

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHAT
Revenue EET
Sales of goods HEEM 1,236,011 789,014
Gross rental income (note a) HE WAL (Hitta) 7,534 7,580
1,243,545 796,594
Other operating income Hh QWA
Bank interest income HRITH) BIA 3,679 12,671
Loan interest income from a shareholder ~ —& %5 7 EZF B U A 3,560 7,854
(wholly repayable within five years) (EBRAFAKE)
Loan interest income from —BRRHB AR ZERFSWA
a fellow subsidiary (2BRAFAKE) 16,186 -
(wholly repayable within five years)
Interest income from overdue trade AR R A 7 2 80 HA e U AR X
receivable from an intermediate ZFEHA
holding company 580 158
Net exchange gain HIE 5 376 -
Reversal of impairment loss previously S AT E fth FE U IE FE R )
recognised on other receivables R EEERE 221 -
Others HAh 42 47
24,644 20,730
Total revenues Y6 1,268,189 817,324

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT
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REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING
INCOME (Continued)

EXRARHEMBEERA
(%)

Notes: BisE
(a) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (@) AEBZESBNFESITET :
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Gross rental income WA LEEE 7,534 7,580
Less: Outgoings B MRS GEASEERA)

(included in cost of sales) (1,418) (1,354)
Net rental income HEWAFHE 6,116 6,226

SEGMENT INFORMATION DEEER

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. Operating
segments identified by the chief operating decision maker are
the same as the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
are as follows:

(@) pharmaceutical and food segment engages in
the selling, distributing and manufacturing of
pharmaceutical and food products;

(b) property investment segment engages in leasing,
developing and selling of office premises and residential
properties; and

(c) natural uranium trading segment engages in trading of
natural uranium resources.

REERRERD B D HBR IR
HEMRERLERRENEFEH
TEMENEREP RN R
RENEmIRGERE - TBLE
IRERE BRI A& D BPEIA AR A AR
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. DHERE)
Segment revenues and results pan e Y E
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TREVANER A HE L& LD 26
by reportable and operating segments: W M EE DT
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE2014F12A31 BLLEE

Natural

Pharmaceutical Property uranium

and food investment trading Total
EZEnkREm YERE RAHES At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHERT FHET FHET THET

Turnover BER 88,091 7,534 1,147,920 1,243,545
Segment (loss) profit DER (E518) = F (101,990) (1,721) 171,981 68,270
Other income and gains H U A MU zs 24,644
Central administration costs AR R ITER A AR (32,347)
Finance costs BB R AR (28,802)
Profit before taxation BR A A 31,765
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F 12 A31 BILEFE

Natural
Pharmaceutical Property uranium
and food investment trading Total

HERAR WERA RAMEZ @
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
FHT BT TET TR

Turnover ) 45,706 7,580 743,308 796,594
Segment (loss) profit 2R (E518) % A (58,262)  (10,390) 136,767 68,115
Other income and gains E A MWz 20,730
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHIB AT Z Yz 6
Central administration costs AR SR AT AR AN (28,531)
Finance costs BE B AN (27,292)
Profit before taxation BB Al 33,028
1 48 CGN Mining Company Limited
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss from)
each segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ salaries, other income, gains and finance costs and

gain on disposal of subsidiaries. This is the measure reported
to the Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

o.

DEER (2
DEURE T R4 ()

REDHZ BT R EREEFN
MIFE3 2 & FTBCRAAR » 2 &P A
(BR) & MmRBUEN (EL
Bi8)  WARDEHR RITHARA -
EEHM - A - Ras @A
PR R B M B A RS © 1t To3h
DERERERBMERAEEANTE
BEZFE -

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities TREJNAREBIRAIRE RLED
by reportable and operating segments: otz EERAR
Segment assets DEEE
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FAT
Pharmaceutical and food BERR S 110,755 91,972
Property investment MEIRE 73,599 77,354
Natural uranium trading KRIME 5 198,277 199,276
382,631 368,602
Unallocated corporate assets RKOBRATIEE 1,532,566 1,283,793
Total assets BEME 1,915,197 1,652,395
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NHER L)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE(E)
Segment liabilities DEBE
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FiBT
Pharmaceutical and food BENRE W 102,858 20,810
Property investment MEIRE 1,217 1,121
Natural uranium trading RKARHE 5 146,532 12,559
250,607 34,490
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKOBRATIEE 583,306 539,329
Total liabilities BEEHE 833,913 573,819
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERNEHEERD A ERSD

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other

than loan receivable from a shareholder, amount due

from a fellow subsidiary, bank balances and cash and

other assets for corporate use including property, plant

and equipment and other receivables.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other

than amount due to an intermediate holding company,

amount due to a fellow subsidiary, income tax payable,

deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds and certain

other payables.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT

Ems :

. BREW—RRERNER
& LS [R) 5% P /BB 22 B 3R 0R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. 7EERE)
Other segment information Hith > E &R
2014 2014 F

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Addition to property, plant

TEDBRED W
BENDHARE:

RENE - WERR

Pharmaceutical
and food

EakRm
HK$'000
TR

Property
investment
S
HK$'000
TERL

Natural
uranium
Trading

ARHES
HK$'000
THR

Unallocated Total

Vil st
HK$000  HK$'000
TEn  TER

and equipment 974 - - 2,821 3,795
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 4,342 283 - 430 5,055
Changes in fair value of RENELLEED

investment properties - 3,232 = = 3,232
Net loss on disposal of property, LEWE  BER

plant and equipment REERTE 886 = = c 886
Impairment of property, 0% BELEERE

plant and equipment 1,521 - - - 1,521
Write-down of inventories WS 3,507 - - - 3,507
Research and development costs rEm A 944 - - - 944
Operating lease rental on THRkEF AL

land and buildings HERS 566 - 366 4,977 5,909
Amounts regularly provided to ESMEEHTE

the Chief Executive Officer REEMELF

but notincluded in the measure ~ &HERAHiEH

of segment profit or loss or HAREETE

segment assets: ZHE:

Interest expense R - = - 28802 28802
Income tax expense RS - - 814 - 814
Bank interest income FATHERA = = = (3,679) (3,679)
Reversal of impairment loss previously  #[87 BTHER

recognised on other receivables R EEE - = = (221) (221)
Loan interest income from —EREMEFFISHA

a shareholder - - = (3,560)  (3,560)
Interest income from a fellow RZNBAEZABHA

subsidliary - - - (16,186)  (16,186)
Interest income from overdue FRERA R SR

trade receivable from an R AEMA

intermediate holding company - - (580) = (580)

Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. HIHER L)
Other segment information (Continued) HihpEHER (&)
2013 20134

Natural

Pharmaceutical uranium

Property
investment
ESE
HK$'000

and food Trading  Unallocated Total
APE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000

THE TR

BRRAR
HK$'000
THE TR

Amounts included in the FEABEERA
measure of segment profit EERCHARE:

or loss or segment assets:
Addition to property, plant

REMZ - BERZ

and equipment 652 - - 175 827
Depreciation and amortisation WERESH 4,592 281 15 430 5318
Changes in fair value of RENENABEED

investment properties - 12,646 - - 12,646
Net loss on disposal of property, LEWE  BER

plant and equipment SfEEREE 185 - - 8 193
Impairment of property, 0% - BEREERE

plant and equipment 942 = = = 942
Write-down of inventories Ve 3,214 - - = 3214
Research and development costs e A 330 - - - 330
Operating lease rental T RkEF EEHERS

on land and buildings 959 - 533 5,966 7,458
Amounts regularly provided to EHREREATERE

the Chief Executive Officer ERBLETEERD

but not included in the HREAIBEET

measure of segment profit EYZRE:

or loss or segment assets:

Interest expense MR - - - 270% 27,292
Income tax expense Frispi - - 16,978 - 16,978
Bank interest income FATHIEMA - - - (12671)  (12671)
Loan interest income —BREMEFFISMA

from a shareholder - - - (7,854) (7,854)

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREE AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (“HK”) and
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

DEER (&)
330 )
AEBMULBANEERDE -

BREAEEREINEEFAHBAR
BEHRREBEERAEMEZS - A
MASEIERBEENEHZRE
BEMEMIEHET -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REIEEF KA FERBNEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014 20134 2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHER FHIT FHEx FAT
HK & - - 3,664 1,713
PRC Fh 1,243,545 796,594 126,842 136,654
1,243,545 796,594 130,506 138,367

Information about major customers BBEEEEFZEHR

Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as
follows:

AR &SI 3 B A B TR F 2 A AN
B EEERBI0%NEL 2
A

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

Customer A' BEHR 1,147,920 743,308
! Revenue from natural uranium trading segment L RERAME 5502 WA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MEKA
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Interest expenses on: THEEZFEMY
— imputed interest charged on —AIRRES 2 HEFE
convertible bonds (note 31) FAsz (FftsE31) 28,802 27,292
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. ISR H
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNER
- current year —KREFEE 28,206 20,282
— overprovision in prior years — B FERERE (6) (168)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A Bl PTISER
— current year —KREFE - 22
28,200 20,136
Deferred tax (note 32) EIEFIA (FizE32) (86) (3,158)
28,114 16,978
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BBNS T IRZ M EEE R G E
assessable profit for both years. FRFE A 16.5% HIF R HE o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT RIER BB EMEHE ([REMS
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax LD REEREEG - RRENEA
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. AIRRESFE 2 B R R 25% °
Certain PRC subsidiaries were either in loss-making position for RAFERBEFE - BT HEH
the current and the previous years or had sufficient tax losses B REIER BN - s A
brought forward from previous years to offset the estimated FFE 2 B E 18 R LA S F Al
assessable income for the year and accordingly did not have STRERTIUA - E R M E S A0
any provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for both years. (AR B (b S FTS B A -
1 54 CGN Mining Company Limited

PEZEEARAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the representative
office of the Company in the PRC becomes dormant and
accordingly no provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
was noted. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
representative office of the Company in the PRC is subject to
the tax rate at 25% under the EIT Law.

The subsidiary operating in Macau was exempted from the
income tax in Macau and disposed of by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for both years.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

BB @)

HZE2014F12 A1 HIEFE - K
RAIZHPENERFEEEEE -
B ER P R ERBRATIRE
- H E£2013F12A31 A L F
€ - ARRZHBEWERBRED
KFTEBUERT 25% B K o

ERPIEE 2 B AR R IRP
T8 - W AEBER2013F 12
A31BIEFERE -

RERSHERRBRERES
(IBVI]) ZZR AR - NEER
MEFEHAARFASESRBVI
FR1SHE -

REERERXHESABRRA
RTINS A BRI T -

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FA&T
Profit before taxation R B A e A 31,765 33,028
Tax calculated at rates applicable to %75 IS R A E R E AR
profits in the respective tax w A BT E 2 FiE
jurisdiction concerned 3,684 3,242
Effect of tax exemption granted —RIRPINEB R R ERRTIE
to a Macau subsidiary -7 - 76
Tax effect of income not taxable BERTIA Z T is s/ 28
for tax purpose (590) (2,109)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N AJ 05 52 1 > #7657 28
for tax purpose 21,269 12,734
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible FFEFRFTEETTE N 7] H1 R B B
temporary difference not recognised ~ E A 2 T 15 5 L 3,757 3,203
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREEE (6) (168)
Income tax expense for the year REFFREHRYH 28,114 16,978

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 32.

R IR B ENPIRES2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

12.

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

12.

RERHEN SR TFIRIA -

2N B A

2014
2014 £

2013
2013 4F
HK$’000
T

HK$’000
TET

Amortisation of intangible assets i ETEE 62 61
Amortisation of prepaid lease B5H T b (F TR E IR

payments on land use rights 407 402
Auditors’ remuneration = S AN & 1,336 1,124
Cost of inventories recognised R BT RET AEEKR AR

as an expense and included TFEIHEEKA

in cost of sales
Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &EFSHEEEE 1,042,620 639,014
Write-down of inventories MomIFE 3,507 3,214

1,046,127 642,228

Depreciation of property, Y - BB NREITE

plant and equipment 4,586 4,855
Operating lease rental on THREBFREHERS

land and buildings 5,909 7,458
Research and development costs IR DPIN 944 330
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRAN (BRESHS)

emoluments) (note 15) (FFzE15) 94,070 51,574
Net exchange loss TRIE 18 = 151
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEMEREZ

plant and equipment [E518 5 886 193

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2014, nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period (2013: nil).

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT

8=\

HZE2014F 12 A31 HIEFEIE
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 B IFEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 is based on the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately HK$3,820,000
(2013: HK$16,365,000) and the weighted average of
3,332,586,993 ordinary shares (2013: 3,332,586,993) in issue
during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds since their exercise would result in an
increase in earnings per share.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

Salaries, allowances,

14.

15.

¥ o REL - BRI RIEL

BRER

BREREN ZFERIRA AR
HE(RHFI#9 3,820,000 7T (2013
F : 16,365,000/8 70 ) LA RIZF
172 hnke 9 A% 83 3,332,586,993
% (2013 4F : 3,332,586,993 % ) &t

% o
AHEEREERNRIIIBEER

BRTTEN A REES - BETE
SEYEREN 2B -

ETIRA (BRESMT)

2014
2014 &

2013
20134
HK$’000
FBT

HK$’000
TR

other benefits and bonus 55,142 50,137

Retirement benefit RIREFIET IR
schemes contribution 1,528 1,437
One-off termination benefits —RIEEHRER) 37,400 =
94,070 51,574

The Group operates defined contribution schemes (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance which are available to qualified employees.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered funds. Monthly
contributions made by the Group are calculated based on
certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed
sums as stipulated under the relevant requirements, as
appropriate.

The employers are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2013: HK$1,250)
and they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s Mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or
total in capacity.

SERABRERRBARIMER
& & 7B O 17 7 BE KA &l
([afEEtEl)) - ZFE2EE
HEFE EERNBYEEEEAD
FisE - REZEARRIIRRE
RAMEFTRT BB R F R A 2 &
TAHHEERE(RERER
ME)&E -

REZERE A#H 2 5% &= 1,500
BT (ZT—=4% :1,250/87C)1F
HHK - MEEEEELEIME
Ko EERGSERRIN « FikER
LRTIERR NREZH100% 2B+
SRR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 ;2014412 A31H It EE

15.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in this country participate
in respective government retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution
schemes operated in Hong Kong.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$1,528,000 (2013:
HK$1,437,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

One-off termination benefits represent payments in relation to
termination of employment for certain staff for planned disposal
of certain subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2014.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in note 35.

CGN Mining Company Limited
L ARA R

15.

ETIRA(BREEHE)

RETEEREERZR - AAF
Z BB A T2 ERIRBATRK
wBAEE(TZFE ) &t
ZEM B AR AR XS EFL
;o BN EEREER ZRKE
A o M FFFEIEH 2 R THIRIR
o B A5 1 P AT B PR MR AN 2 s
EANLAE HEEREREE
R AR B S A 2 2 BUR KR
M o REBAZFTE 2 RIEER
RIBZ ST EIELAFHN -

RRAEAIET I R BN A S B A f
BARME REF I ZFTEARR
BREIEZERHEFGEHEIEL 2 #
TREERE -

B85k 2 B 481,528,000 7
JC (2013 4F : 1,437,000 75) » AP
AEBRAS AR ZEEIE
R K o

— B RERBE = 2014 F 12
A31B I FERARBAEHES
THIBA R ETE TR 23
I8 o

AARIAAEEE TR EBREL
FHBRURHITESS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve

(2013: twelve) directors and the chief executive were as

16.

E=NE&EEFMA L2
oA

(@) EFRIETHAEME

B fF =k + = & (2013
F A ZR)EEREET

follows: BABZMEWT :
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BRZE2014512831 HILEE
Other emoluments
Hi#e
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total
e 28 BINER
i RHEMERN META Bl st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 LE
TARL TARL TARL TARL TARL
Executive directors: HTEE
Yu Zhiping' RET - 1,029 - - 1,029
He Zuyuan T - 936 - - 936
Non-executive directors: HHTEE -
Huang Jianming =EH 150 - - - 150
Zhou Zhenxing? ARE 200 - - - 200
Chen Qiming TGRS B 150 - - - 150
Xing Jianhua® EpE 63 - - - 63
Yin Engang’ FE[E° 88 - - - 83
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE
Qiu Xianhong APt 120 - - - 120
Ling Bing' AR 78 - - - 78
Huang Jinsong* LY 78 - - - 78
Lee Kwok Tung® TER® 43 - - - 43
Gao Pei JF SRS 43 - - - 43
1,013 1,965 - - 2,978
! Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the Chief Executive Officer of ! REFERETRB/ARFN
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above HEWITE - EXIEE
included those for services rendered by him as the BEMHMEE BIEERE
Chief Executive Officer. TERERPITENMS

Resigned on 1 June 2014.
Appointed on 1 June 2014.
Resigned on 22 August 2014.

[S BN )

Appointed on 22 August 2014.

KB o
201446 A1 BHEHTE °
R2014F6 A1 HEERT -
201448 A22 AEHT -
MR2014F8R22H & %
£
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. EENFEEF A T 2
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) T (%)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EZERFETHAEMS
(Continued) (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2014, retirement HE2014F12A31HIEF
benefit schemes contribution for directors is borne B EHERRENEEIHER
by FEEZEEAR AR, the ultimate parent of the TIERA QB Z &G AR
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to B 12 Sk B A PR X =] S EL MY
as the “CGNPC Group”). No apportionment has been BAR (s [ EZEE])
made as the directors of the Company consider that it HHE e AN A RNREERE
is impracticable to apportion this amount between their MERARERE P EZEER
services to the Group and their services to CGNPC RIS M #Z 8B T
Group. Al77 - A s AREL D o
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2013F12A31BHILEE
Other emoluments
At
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total
e 2 RINGEA
e RAMEN BfiEa FELE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEr THE FH THL THEL
Executive directors: HTEZ
Yu Zhiping' PR - 75 - - 75
Li Xianlf TR - 1,185 160 - 1,345
He Zuyuan® {8 - 1274 188 - 1462
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Yu Zhiping' AEF 185 - = - 185
Wei Qiyan' -t 139 - - - 139
Jin Yunfef HER 139 - - - 139
Huang Jianming HEHR 150 - _ _ 150
Chen Qiming® RS 11 - - - 11
Xing Jianhua® e 11 = = = 11
Zhou Zhenxing™® EiEm 15 - _ _ 15
Independent non-executive directors: BUHRTEE -
Ling Bing &R 120 - - - 120
Qiu Xianhong (il 120 - - - 120
Huang Jinsong YN 120 - - - 120
1,010 2,534 348 - 3,892
1 60 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

1

Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
included those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive Officer. He was redesignated from
the Chairman of the board of directors and a non-
executive director to the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director on 5 December 2013.

Resigned on 5 December 2013.

Redesignated from the Chief Executive Officer to
an executive vice president of the Company on 5
December 2013.

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, was appointed as the Chairman of
the board of directors on 5 December 2013.
Appointed on 5 December 2013.

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none of them were directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two, including Mr. He Zuyuan and Mr. Li Xianli

for the period from 1 January 2013 to 5 December 2013

were directors of the Company whose emoluments are

included in the disclosures in note 16(a) above.

16. &=
% (

(a)

(b)

\

KBz = Fr A = 2 B

/

EERIETHAEMS
(&)

i REFLEETRRBRATN
HREWITE @ EXFEE
FEMNNHESC BERRE
TERERHITE B
MBS - HH2013F12A8
SHEBEEFGXRERIEHN
TESATERNTER
WITES -

2 20134 12 A5 AFHT °

8 R2013F 12 A5BHERE
WITEREARREHE
1 -

“ AIREL e A R2013F 12 8
SHEZTRESEEE -

5 MN2013F 12 A58 # %
£

BEHMAL

RAEB L &o&HHA
+r o ER 2014512 A
31 HARARIES -

01BFAEEREHEH
MALTH  BEMEARRD
AEE: MEATEERST
W7 A (1B E R 20134 1
A1H=Z=2013F 12 A58
MAARRAGESE)  HEH
BEAE LitfisE16(a)F{ED

P -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. EENFEEF A T 2
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) T (%)
(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (Continued) (b) BEeHMAL(E)
The emoluments for the five individuals (2013: hA&eH M A L2013
emoluments for Mr. Li Xianli for the period from 5 F: T/ T HEER2013F
December 2013 to 31 December 2013 and the 12 A58 E2013F12A31H
remaining three individuals) were as follows: RES=F) MBS T

2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT

Salaries, allowances e R REAMER
and other benefits 5,880 4,120
Discretionary bonus BIIBIEAT 7,840 467

One-off termination benefits ~ — X IEBHRIER

(note (i) (B%E () 1,900 —

15,620 4,687

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT



16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(note (ii))

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

Individuals with highest emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

1,000,001 7.2 1,500,000 7T
(PR 3E (i)

1,500,001 72 2,000,000 58 7T
2,000,001 7L E 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 #7TE 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 7870
3,500,001 8 7LE 4,000,000 7T

16.

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

E=NE&EEFMA L2

& (#)

(b)

Number of
Individuals

RESFMAL(E)
HMS UL TEER

2014 2013

2014 20134
Number of

individuals

A N

1
3 -
1

(i) One-off termination benefits represent payments in
relation to termination of employment for certain staff
for planned disposal of certain subsidiaries of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(ii) Mr. Li Xianli resigned as an executive director on 5
December 2013. His total emoluments as the capacity
of director and staff of the Company was within the
band of HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000.

Except for HK$1,900,000 which has been paid to one of
five highest paid individuals as compensation for loss of
office and recognised as termination benefit during the
year ended 31 December 2014, no emoluments have
been paid by the Group to all directors of the Company
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013. No directors of the Company waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

@) —RMERBEFEEE
2014F 12 A31 A IEFE
PARD R &5 T H
BARZNETEIBER
2 °

(ii) FIRT ELEM20135F 128
5EBENITES . HiE
EAARNEERETHOH
% #8 %8 7£1,000,001 7 7T
2% 1,500,000 7 JT H) %3 &
A o

MAEZE 2014512 31 H

HEESRAEZRSHFA

+ 2 — 1,900,000 i 7T, 2 B

BB R R AERER

G AEE 2014 5 K 2013

F12A31HILFE @ A&

B ERAARGEMES

ShfE=HT AT

& - YER WS 0 A R

AR E B 2 2B sk /E

BEERBRME - RE=E2014

FN2013FE12 A31 B ILE

B BMEAQAESRE

S EEMETMENE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE

Technical
know-how

BRIl AR
HK$000
FTAT

COST RS
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1 A1 R 2,932
Exchange realignment PE S 92
At 31 December 2013 M2013%F 12 A31 8 3,024
Exchange realignment b i A (10)
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 431 H 3,014
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ESE 1]
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1 R 2,666
Exchange realignment [EE 0 ZF 8 85
Provided for the year REFEAE 61
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 2,812
Exchange realignment R ©)
Provided for the year AN E R 62
At 31 December 2014 720145 12H31H 2,865
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 431 H 149
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 212
Technical know-how has finite useful lives and are amortised on ERR A A SR A E AR
a straight-line basis over five years. T E A B R o
1 64 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M HERDRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
Land and

buildings

Plant and
machinery

Motor
vehicles

improve- office

ments equipment Total
fRifl - %8

AE RBAR

HEMR
THRET KE

Pz ke 5t

HK$'000
TAL

HK$'000
THL

HK$'000
AT

HK$'000
T

HK$'000
7

HK$'000
AT

COST BRA
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A1A 47766 5,266 81,648 12,006 8706 155302
Exchange realignment [ A% 1,494 165 2,548 351 265 4,823
Additions RE - - 616 = 211 827
Disposals L& (125) - (595) (1,706) (514) (2,940)
At 31 December 2013 R2013%€12531R 49135 5,431 84,217 10,651 8,668 158,102
Exchange realignment B 5 SR (402) (24) (194) 40) (29) (683)
Additions RE - 185 268 116 3,226 3,795
Disposals L& (791) - (1,005) (1,150) (137) (3,179)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%128318 47,042 5502 83,196 9,577 11,734 158,041
ACCUMULATED ZAERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2013 M2013%1 A10 32,309 3,788 53,673 9,470 6274 105514
Exchange realignment i 1,025 129 1,928 285 205 3,572
Provided for the year AEERE 648 697 1,996 747 767 4,855
Impairment losses recognised (note) B EAREEE (fit:) 240 - 611 = 91 942
Eliminated on disposals R 25) - (521) (1536) (77) (2,359)
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12F31R 34,197 4,614 57,687 8,966 7060 112,524
Exchange realignment B 5 A (100) (18) (190) (30) (19) (357)
Provided for the year AEERE 1,750 342 1,298 613 583 4,586
Impairment losses recognised (note) B RERREEE (1) 647 - 503 100 271 1,521
Eliminated on disposals L ERHE (183) - (985) (631) (122) (1,921)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%128318 36,311 4938 58313 9,018 7,713 116,353
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 R2014512831R 11,631 654 24,883 559 3,961 41,688
At 31 December 2013 R2013%€1231R 14,938 817 26,530 1,685 1,608 45,578
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - WERRE &)

(Continued)

The carrying values of properties shown above comprise:

bz REERRE

2014 2013
2014 % 20134

HK$’000 HK$'000

Land outside Hong Kong: MREBIFIN T3 -
Medium-term lease FRHEIFRE

T8 FHT

11,631 14,882

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives
and rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of
buildings the lease or 40 years

Leasehold land and

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 5 years

Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 27%

office equipment

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group’s manufacturing assets
and determined that a number of those assets were impaired,
due to physical damage and technical obsolescence. Accordingly,
impairment losses of approximately HK$647,000 (2013: HK$240,000),
HK$503,000 (2013: HK$611,000), HK$271,000 (2013: HK$91,000)
and HK$100,000 (2013: nil) were recognised in respect of land
and buildings, plant and machinery and furniture, fixtures and office
equipment and motor vehicles respectively which were used in the
pharmaceutical and food segment. The directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amounts of the relevant assets based on
their fair values less costs of disposal using the market approach with
reference to the recent transaction prices which is within level 2 fair
value hierarchy.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT

Ltz - BB RREERE THIRE
B AORIR AT Al A 6 B e S K5
BirE

METHLE  IRAEFHN

BT 405 - UBEE
RAE
THEMHERE HHEFHNGF -
B E B
BER#EE  25%%F20%
E 20%

Bl KER 10%ZE27%
N

p

B

REZE2014F12 31 HIEFE - KARE
ERMAEECEELE  RAXSEET
AL ERYIPEERBINRRE LA -
At - EARERRRMD E02 T RIE
FBEREEBULRRM HEERRAR
{8 Bl W SRR 18 65 18 40 647,000 7% 7T (2013
£ : 240,000/ 7T) + 503,000 T (20134 ¢
611,000 7T ) & 271,000 7T (20134 :
91,0007 7T) 100,000/ 7L(20134F : &) °
ARBEEENEREEZ AR BERELE
BRAL 2 EBAFEE_RERIEHRS
BEERTISEA



18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - WERRE &)
(Continued)

Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment for which M2014FE12 A1 B AREE 2 W% -
impairment loss had been recognised and information about R E M B EERRERIE &
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: ERARBERBHZERETNT

Fair value
as at 31
December
2014

Level 2 20145124
FEZH/K SB1BZARE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T REF 11,631 11,631
Plant and machinery RS K e 25 24,840 24,840
Furniture, fixtures and RFh - HERPARE
office equipment 559 559
Motor vehicles VREE 273 273
There was no transfer in or out of level 2 during the year ended HZE2014512A31H » WEEA
31 December 2014. HEHNE AR
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= UEER

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HK$’000
THET

19.

BREW=

FAIR VALUE ARE

At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1 H 83,530

Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss BREEERZ AR ER D (12,646)

Exchange realignment b X 2,428

At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31 H 73,312

Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss EREBEEERZ AR ERD (3,232)

Exchange realignment PE 5 A% @71)

At 31 December 2014 M2014%12H31H 69,809

Notes: B E

(@) The carrying value of investment properties shown above are @) mgﬁ@@z% Ej@%mﬁf%@
situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease. IRETHEESA

(b) All of the Group’s property interests held under operating (b) Z’“‘%Fﬁdﬁ_fﬂ%@%*ﬁgﬁﬁu%
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are ?*ﬁﬁjf’ﬁéaiig?fﬁzw*%
measured using the fair value model and are classified and ﬁﬁf;jt*@/gﬁ*%ﬁﬁi IR
accounted for as investment properties. ABIIER A

© The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 ©) ALRBREYER 20145 2013

December 2014 and 2013 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Avista”), independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who had among its staff members
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being valued. The
valuation was arrived at on an open market basis assuming
sale with existing tenancies by using the income approach by
capitalising the net rental income receivable from the existing
tenancies and the reversionary rental income potentials.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT

F12A31BZ DA ETIERRER
SEERECZBEYABREXME
B3 EE AT A AE R AR ([ FE
fe ]) PAET B E B - AL
HDETIRERAEMBERE %
BT E Y PR R H R
B2 HERR - ZHERZART
BEE BRERFHETHE
BREAMCKRERAAENHES R
AFBERBEEEESWAME
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. BEYE#)

Notes: (Continued) MiE : (&)

(d) There has been no change from the valuation technique used (d HERMNR E—FERAE &R
in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, B BHEVEZARENE Y
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. ¥ RERERELAERRZFERA

& o
) The Group’s investment properties that are measured () REBZREWMEUNNSHEREZ

subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
HK$69,809,000 (2013: HK$73,312,000). They are grouped
into fair value hierarchy level 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs fair value measurements is observable.

There were no transfers between levels in fair value hierarchy for
the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of

investment properties:

All Investment
properties

FrEREMZE

Valuation

technique

fRE R

Income approach

WA

A4 869,809,000/ (=T —=
£ :73,312,000/ 7T ) 5t 2 © iR
AABEABRNEESBEARAE
=

MN20134 K2014E12 A31H M
FRATENRBEERHE ZFHE

AR

Key input
FEBHAE

Income approach takes into the
account of net rental income of the
properties derived from the existing
leases and/or achievable in the
existing market with due allowance
for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have
been then capitalised to determine
the market value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.
WAETY S KRB B AR A
B R,/HERFTS A ER
ZHeWRAFE  BEREHAEE
ZEHBAEBNERERSE - B
EREETAERMCUNRRK —EE
BRI REETE -

ARRAYEE=RAAENES
ap

Significant
unobservable inputs
TABE Y BT AR

Term vyield and reversion
yield ranging from 9%
to 15% and 8% to 15%
respectively.

HERaEXRERKRX
DRI F9% E15% K 8%

£15% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value measurement of the investment properties
determined by using income approach is negatively correlated
to the term yield and reversion yield. A slight increase in term
yield and reversion yield used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measurement of the properties, vice
versa.

The net decrease in fair value of approximately HK$3,232,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$12,646,000).

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND
USE RIGHTS

19.

20.

BEWE#)

RRABRAZBEZREMEAARE
FrENEPFEKRERLERKRX
ZR10% - BRkEXRER KRS
REEMIEREEBMEARENE
BERD » RZIR °

HE2014F12A31B Lt EE -
NAER D FREA) 3,232,000 7T
(2013 : 12,646,000/ 7T ) Jy A 18

Tt fEAEENEERE

2014 2013
2014 % 20134

HK$°000 HK$’000
TR AT

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLEREBE KIDNT A ¢

Current assets mBNEE 407 409
Non-current assets IERBEE 18,860 19,265
19,267 19,674

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use rights
in respect of land located in the PRC held under medium-term
lease.

1 70 CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT

BNHERRBERTHHEERA
2R Bz 13 2 + 3 {58 FR A AX
ZX o



21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

GOODWILL 21. BE
HK$°000
FHET
COST BRAR
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 and 2014 7R2013F1 A1 A K2013F &
201412 A31H 112,406
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 and 2014 R2013F1 A1 HB&2013F &
201412 A31H 112,406
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 A2014F 12831 H =
At 31 December 2013 7R2013F 12 431 H =

The amount represents goodwill in relation to the acquisition of
the entire interest in MO)I[{EREZEGR AR (“‘PU)I[1EZHR") and
its subsidiary in 2008.

Upon confirmation of expiry of the food hygiene license of
Osteoform Food Product during the second half year of 2011,
goodwill was further impaired to nil with reference to a valuation
report issued by Avista.

ZE RN 2008 FHE M) EZE
BEARAR(m)I1EZE 1) Kk EH
BARZERRELZHE -

BRENITER M2 RMEEAIE
R2011 F T EFRHE - WL
EVE@MTEE 2 HERSE - B8
EE—FREET -

INVENTORIES 22, FE
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Raw materials B R 8,894 1,148
Work in progress RS 368 146
Finished goods 2URK 5B 22,499 19,656
Packing materials BEE 775 640
32,536 21,590

Annual Report 2014 1 71
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A 23.

SHAREHOLDER

Bl — B R REER

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT

Loan to China Uranium Development B TR

= 248,082

The Group advanced the revolving loans to China Uranium
Development in the sum of USD32,000,000 as at 31 December
2013. The loans were unsecured, carried interest at one month
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 6% per annum at
6.2% per annum (2013: one month LIBOR plus 6% per annum
ranging from 6.2% to 6.3% per annum) and repayable within
90 days after the advancement. On 26 February 2014, the loan
was fully settled.

AEER2013F 12 A31 HEFH
TR —%A%032,000,000
ETHRERER ZERAER
A ERZ-—EAAGBRITRERES
(TLIBORJ) m6EX)6.2 [EF FI=
(20134 : —fAA LIBORNGESF
EEEH62EECIEFFER)N
FEFE - WARERKA %A
REE - R2014F2A26H @ Z&
ROEZBEE -

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, FEWARFR H W RIE
2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Trade and bills receivables (note a) FEU AR TR I B W R I (P sk a) 218,054 207,575
Less: impairment loss recognised in - 3 : FEMERE R 2 B HERRE
respect of trade receivables E518 (FI3ED)
(note b) (4,330) (4,344)
213,724 203,231
Prepayments, deposits and other TBAFIE - fle REM
receivables (note c) FEM RIE (FisEc) 13,062 10,225
226,786 213,456

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

() At 31 December 2014, included in trade and bills receivables
is amount of approximately HK$194,335,000 (2013:
HK$195,769,000) due from an intermediate holding company,
CGNPC-URC, the sole shareholder of China Uranium

24.

FE Wi Bl 7K . L At P WK R IR
(#)

PRE -

B

(a) M2014F12 A31 A + FI AEUER
K% FEWR BE 7 B4 194,335,000
7 7T (2013 4F : 195,769,0007% 7T )
BFEW R IR R AP B s

Development. & (R EH#HEFRAOE—RR) K
IE o
(o) The movements in impairment loss of trade receivables were (o) FEWERIEREREZESNT
as follows:
2014
20144
HK$’000
FHExT
At 1 January W1 A1H 4,344 4,212
Exchange realignment Ve 7, S (14) 132
At 31 December MK12A31H 4,330 4,344

At 31 December 2014, included in the impairment loss of trade
receivables are individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,330,000 (2013:
HK$4,344,000) which were due to long outstanding.

(c) At 31 December 2014, included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are interest receivable of approximately
HK$1,452,000 (2013: nil) due from CGNPC Huasheng
Investment Limited (“Huasheng”), a fellow subsidiary of the
company in relation to advances deposited in Huasheng for
obtaining financial services.

At 31 December 2013, included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are interest receivable of approximately
HK$169,000 (2014: nil) due from China Uranium Development
in relation to the revolving loan of USD32,000,000 (2014: nil)
(note 23).

The Group’s credit period for pharmaceutical and food
segment ranged from 90 days to 180 days while credit period
for natural uranium trading segment ranging from 25 days to 30
days after delivery dates.

R2014F 12 A31 A » EUERTKAY
AR B B R R E /) R
A FHERR494,330,00047C (2013
£ 1 4,344,00087C) © {EHRIER
AR REIARMERE -

(0) R2014F12 831 8 » FIAFEN K
B e REMEKRFIEABRT
BERRERERREGRAT([E
&) —FRRMB AR Z B
RIS S B RG MEKERNFSL
1,452,000 87T (2013 4F : £E) o

M2013F12 4318 + | A ¥ -
FIE - FTe REAERGIENSE
—HERPEMEZEENNELN
169,000 7T /& £ 32,000,000 3 &
(2014 5 : &) MBIRE KM (2014
& - ) (KaE23) °

ERMABE  AEEELRE®
DESREE RN T O0RE 180K -
MAAME S D EEHAN T
25 RE30K °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

24,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and bills
receivables net of impairment loss recognised on trade and
bills receivables presented based on the invoice date, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates, at the

end of the reporting period.

24.

FE Wi Bl 7K . L At P WK R IR
(#)

RBEHREER - ARKRRER
BHRENERAYAEE - kK
EHERREERIR 2 RURR & &
WERBMRER DTN

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx T

Within 30 days 30K 180,448 29,793
31-60 days 31 260K 28,255 171,344
61-90 days 61ZE 90K 2,755 1,373
Over 90 days BB 90K 2,266 721
213,724 203,231

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance,
carrying amount of approximately HK$23,007,000 (2013:
HK$169,067,000) which is past due as at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
this balance. The ageing of the balance is 31 to 180 days (2013:
31 to 60 days) at the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Presented in:

SIRAS

USD’000

FXx
2014

2014 5

& TR B Bt
JEURIR

Trade and other receivables

AEBREREREHEERES
1B & #923,007,000 78 7T (2013 4F :
169,067,000 7T ) B FEULFIR » 7%
FIERREHARE B - BAEE
WAL ERBBIELEE - ANE®
W Sh 2 S AR E E R E AR -
RS HR SRR A 312180
X (20134 : 31 E60K) °

AEENEREEEREERIL
Shz BB 2 FRUBRR S EL At FE
YRR -

RMB’000
AR¥T T
2014
2014 5

2013
20134

2013
20134

= 280 490

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Huasheng,
performed certain treasury activities for the Group and CGNPC
Group. Pursuant to the arrangement, the fellow subsidiary
receives funds from the Group, pools the funds together with
funds from CGNPC Group companies and provides intra-
group financial services for the Group and CGNPC Group.
The fellow subsidiary will reimburse interest to the Group with
reference to the prevailing market interest rate. Details are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28 February
2014. At 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately
HK$1,299,336,000 (2013: nil) due from the fellow subsidiary
under this arrangement. During the year ended 31 December
2014, the Group earned interest income amounting to
approximately HK$16,186,000 from the fellow subsidiary under
this arrangement.

The amount due from Huasheng is unsecured, interest-bearing
ranging from 0.84% to 1.91% per annum and repayable within
one year according to terms of deposit agreements.

As at 31 December 2014, the amount due to a fellow subsidiary
of approximately HK$2,821,000 represents unsettled amount
for purchase of enterprise resource planning (the “ERP”) system
from CGN Power Co., Limited (“CGN Power”), for which
ultimate parent is CGNPC.

The amount due to CGN Power is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within a specified credit term.

25.

FEW,FEAS B 2 B /B 2 H)

I

HE2014F12 A1 HIEFE @
BAREERTERZEB#EITAET
&R o IREBRH - ARMEBA
ARAEBKEES - KEREFR
BZREENESES WATEE
FhEZEEREEEAT SR
%o RRAMNBATBELRERN
TSR ERRAREBEMNFL o 515
AR QTR 201442 B 28 A T3
2% R2014F 12 A31H » &K
SEBREZTHERKARMER
RIFRIALY1,299,336,000/5 7T (2013
&) - HFE2014% 128311t
FE - AEBBRBEZLH R R
B A RIBREUH) 2 WA %7 16,186,000
BT o

FEEER TR TR « 120.84%
E1.91% T ENFAXF B RRE
TF R AR — S REE

R2014F 1283180 EHNR X
B/ A A 2 492,821,000 7% 7T BN [\
FRIEZENROBERAR ([HE
%)) (SRS AR AR ER) BE
EEREE ([ERP])) BFZKE
He5E -

FEHeh R RIR TR - RETR
RARBRE B ik (E IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

26.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2014, unpledged bank balances comprise
of short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three
months or less of approximately HK$21,262,000 (2013:
HK$999,334,000) and bank balance of approximately
HK$204,242,000 (2013: HK$31,020,000). Short-term bank
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.64%
(2013: ranging from 0.01% to 1.40%) per annum and bank
balances carry interest at average market rate of 0.32% (2013:
0.33%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash of the Group at 31 December 2014
include amounts of approximately HK$6,862,000 (2013:
HK$19,721,000) denominated in RMB which is not freely
convertible to other currencies.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Presented in:
HIRA

26.

HKD’000

FET
2014

2014 &

Bank balances and cash WITHEFENES

827

RITEEREE

2014512 431 B » EIKIFIRTT
HrEeERRETEEHA=MEARNZ
R HBIR 1T 17 3 4921,262,0007% 7T
(2013 4 : 999,334,000 7T ) MR
17 4517 #9204,242,00078 7T (2013
1 31,020,000 L) ° 2 HAIRTT
FREZEEFMENFOONER
1.64[E (20134 : /7 FO.01E =
1.40[E) 5H 8 - MIRITETFIRFY
M5 %0.322 (20134 : 0.33F)
FTE o

AEER2014F128318 2 R
THEERASBEAARBEE Y
X T8 #96,862,00078 7T (2013 4F :
19,721,000 7T) * ZEFIEBETF
BELBAREMEN -

REEAEHEERERINEEE A
SN BEHEZ RITERERBR 2
T

RMB’000
AR¥T T
2014
2014

2013
20134

2013
20134
315

382,887 351

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

FEAS AR I EL At FE A FRIR

2014 2013

2014 20134

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Trade and bills payables FERN BRAR R BN R AR 159,768 13,825
Accrued expenses and other payables [&5t 57 Kz E 1th & {~f Zi I8 82,679 20,761
242,447 34,586

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

NHEHMAER - BIEHZAH
20z BN ER S EN R R
DT -

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

FHET T

Within 30 days 30 KA 145,282 13,552
31-60 days 31 £ 60K 2,724 31
61-90 days 61 290K 347 2
Over 90 days BB 90K 11,415 240
159,768 13,825

The average credit period on purchases of goods was 30 days
(2013: 30 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit time frame.

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

Presented in:

DRA TERr

2014

HKD’000

2013

RBERZFHEEHANKX
(2013 : 30K) - AEEEE
MHEEREIRRE - RERTERE
HHREREEHREE -

AEENEREEERESR I
Sz BEIIE 2 A ERR R E AR
faREIT

USD’000 RMB’000

TEn ARBTT
2014 2013 2014 2013

20145 20134 2014%F 2013F 2014F 20134

FERTRRFN R E At
FE5RIR 1,870

Trade and other payables

- 715 2,641 1,230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

28. AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE 28. FEMNPEEZERAQRFIEA
HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due to an intermediate holding company FETREER A R IE B SR E
represents unsettled amount of management service provided ZiE B RIBEEERE 2 REN
by CGNPC-URC. SR o
The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within a X IO TR - it B RIBE R
specified credit period. HIEFHEEER -

29. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 20. FEEEQRIKIE
The amount represents other taxes in relation to purchase ZFEEBBEE A RARRRKEA
of natural uranium resources from Semizbay-U Limited AIR)A & /A Bl Semizbay-U Limited
Liability Partnership (“‘Semizbay-U”), a joint venture of a fellow Partnership ([ Semizbay-U | ) £E#
subsidiary of the Company, charged by the local government KA EIRM 21 Semizbay-U&E
of Semizbay-U. The amount is reimbursed to Semizbay-U in W ER o Za B IHIREARD
accordance with a purchase agreement entered into between AIHLSemizbay-URT M E ik
the Company and Semizbay-U. M2 Semizbay-U °
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on Ze R AEIRE C TEHRMIRET
specified credit period. EEHRES -

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B

Number
Amount
o
HK$’000
FHET

of shares

R EE

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014

FREEO0.01 /BT Bk

ERE
R20135F1 A1H -
20183F 12 831 B &

2014F12 A31 H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 ©2018%F1 818 -
and 31 December 2014 2018312 A31 H K
201412 A31 H 3,332,586,993 33,326

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 18 August 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “CB”) in principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 to China Uranium Development. The CB are
denominated in HK$. The CB entitled the holder to convert
the CB in full or in part (in an amount of HK$1,000 and integral
multiples thereof) into the ordinary shares of the Company at
any time on or after the date of issue of the CB up to seven
days prior to the maturity date on 17 August 2016 at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.23 per share, subject to adjustments.
If the CB had not been converted, it would be redeemed on 17
August 2016 at its principal amount.

The CB contained two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element was presented in equity heading
“equity component of convertible bonds”. The fair value of the
liability component are calculated as the present value of the
stream of future cash flows. The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 5.43% per annum. The movement of the
liability component of the CB for the year is set out below:

31.

AR EZ

ARATEF2011498 A 18 B [A)194 Bl #h
BRI $ %8 A 600,000,000
BrzERBABRRES ([ A 7R
&%) o JIRRES OB ITATE -
MRESFEE AR TR
REH BB 2 EEZREA
(20168 A17 H) A+ B 2 (E 6
MG TR ESBES B (L5
71,0008 7T & B T REE) 1RV 5
EIREFR0.23B (A THAR)E
BBARRRIEBRARD o WAREEE
B ES - Bl 201658 A
17 BAEARSREER -

AERD o BRAFED R [ AR E S
BAED | BT 2 A2 - B
BERD AABARRBREREZR
ExtE - RS ZERFNEREF
M 5.43% o TRETIF AR HRAR
BERABERY 228

ABRESREMED - AEMR
B

kv
=]
37

HK$’000
TR

At 1 January 2013 M2013F1 A1 H 493,413
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HENBRY (FE10) 27,292
At 31 December 2013 R2013%F 12 A31 H 520,705
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HER SR (FFE10) 28,802
At 31 December 2014 2014512831 H 549,507

Annual Report 2014
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e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. EEBIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets NTRRAFE FBREFERERZ
recognised and movements thereon during the current and FTEREHIEEEREENNERH
prior year: T -

Change in

fairvalue  Change in

of land and fair value of

buildings  properties

and upon transfer

Accumulated  investment to investment
tax depreciation properties  properties
THREF OERERZ

DRBREWE REWERKZ

ZAHBERE ARERE  ALEEE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THT AL

At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 /1R 6,149 4,140 3,282 13,571
Charged to profitorloss A1 - (3,158) = (3,158)
Exchange realignment B 57, 3% 57 83 104 244
At 31 December 2013 R2013%F 12 A31 B 6,206 1,065 3,386 10,657
Credited to profit orloss ~ Ef AfBz 775 (861) = (86)
Exchange realignment [E 5 5 351 (7) (11) 333
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A31A8 7,332 197 3,375 10,904
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RmEHELEER  AEEAH#
tax losses of approximately HK$116,978,000 (2013: AR ANz A ABRIEE
HK$87,786,000) available for offset against future profits. B 4 A&116,978,000/8 7T (2013
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of 4 : 87,786,000/ 7L ) o A A &
the tax losses of approximately HK$116,978,000 (2013: BE TROBI AR 2% ) RO - B3 5
HK$87,786,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit #47116,978,0007% 7T (20134 :
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of 87,786,000/ 7T ) 2 i B E5 18 7R
HK$116,978,000 (2013: HK$87,786,000) that will expire after BREMIAEE - RERHIARERE
five years from the year of assessment to which they relate to. MR #7116,978,000% T (2013 4F

87,786,000/ L) SR ELE FERE 2
T EE R AFEREM °

1 80 CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREERRAF
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$67,771,000 (2013:
HK$67,280,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,253,000 (2013:
HK$2,707,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 21 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in a total of three
inactive subsidiaries, to an independent third party for a total
consideration of HK$70,000. Those disposed subsidiaries
included Sino Lion Capital Inc. (“Sino Lion”), Beshabar (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Beshabar (MCQO)”) and
Beshabar Trading Limited (“Beshabar Trading”).

32.

33.

EAEBLTH ()

RBEREEER  AEEEA
H0 Rk B& B 2= BE 967,771,000/ 7T
(20134 : 67,280,000 7T ) » M
FATN A R 8675 FE AR Tt vt 1| AT 4 4 £
AR AERE - R kA B PR
R E R REERIEAE -

BESEMETHE - 820084 1
A1B# - gt B E A B FTERER
B AT IR 2 AR BEBMRTENF - i
FAZN S B AL 2 1) 38 [l B s 22 RE 2 B
M BB EE TR RER ]
RigkEsmE - I ERN R A ISR
R BHNB AR R aFIATES
Fe s = 582,253,000/ 7 (20134 ¢
2,707,000 7% 7T ) 1 1 i RE %1 18 #%
1o

& E A F

201356 A21 8 » ANEBFT 8
Eg o IBYE-HHEE=M
WA SETS 2 M A Rl 2 2 B A
% HEREBAET0,0008TT  ZED
tH & BB 2 5] £2#ESino Lion Capital
Inc.([Sino Lion]) « EESF &5 (CRFIEE
ERERS) ER AR ([ESER
9 ]) X Beshabar Trading Limited
(IBeshabar Trading|) °
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e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

33.

34.

35.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The aggregate net assets of those disposed subsidiaries at the
date of disposal were as follows:

33.

HEHMB AT &)

ZECHEMBARNEERNZ
BEFELBENT

HK$’000
T

Bank balances and cash RITETFRRE 723
Other receivables H At EUGRIR 18
Other payables HAbFETFRIR 677)
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE 64
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz M 6
Total cash consideration BIRSRE 70
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEA RS RIFRE
Cash consideration received FrUCERIR & (B 70
Bank balances and cash disposed of Pt SRTEM AR S (723)
(653)

The subsidiaries disposed of had no significant impact on the
results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired
an ERP system of approximately HK$2,821,000 which is
included in property, plant and equipment. The consideration
was set off through current account with the fellow subsidiary
as set out in note 25.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 26 January 2002
(“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The 2002 Share Option
Scheme was replaced by a share option scheme adopted
by the shareholders on 23 July 2003 (2003 Share Option
Scheme”).

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT

34.

35.

HENB AR S AEEEZ2013
FI2A3THLEFEZXERRS
MEWESEATE -

FTEFRERS

R20144F 12 A31 BILEFE - A&
B LA%)2,821,000 8 LA LEE
BIRBIZRAS - EEFAYE - BEXR
R o KT FE2B AT ZRETY
FRERRMB AR ZAREKEE K

BT

KA R 20024F 1 A 26 HERHA—
18 B8 A% 4 51 21 ([ 2002 4 B8 fx i &t
2l1) - 2002 FHE MR EET &I E B AR
200347 A 23 B BN 2 $EER
T2 ([2003 F BB A HERT &I |) BX
Ko
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 2 June 2010, a new share option scheme
(2010 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and the 2003
Share Option Scheme was terminated. Any share options
granted pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme prior to the
termination will remain exercisable before the expiration date.
Details of which were set out in the Company’s circular dated
27 April 2010.

The board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participant including any
employees, any non-executive directors, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture partners and
any shareholders of any members of the Group or any invested
entities or any holders of any securities issued by any members
of the Group or any invested entities. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted under its share option scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of its issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution
adopting the share option scheme unless it is approved by
shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholder
in a general meeting of the Company. Any grant of options
under the share option scheme to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). Any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company.

35.

BRETE )

RIER2010F 6 A2 HEITZRE
REXE BB BT RRHSE
KRR BB R — B R ER S
([2010F FE R #EET &1 )) + 12003
FHEREEE S 1E - 2003F
BRI RT B4R I AR L3R HH 2 (]
BRI R EIEA R AIAT(E - BRE
SHIEER AN T BEI20105F4 A27
HZ@EK -

AABEESMIEREGEKDE
ERLERE  BREAKEEMAK
BRARINHIREER CEMES
pITEE B HER T
P B BHAA - 8RR
R AKEEAIKE R R SRWIRE
BERMBITES A A « BEIT
FIRBEA QR ERER I AR A
FrER#n AT H b B AR R ST EIFTIR E
BRI A BE BT 2 AN R AR D&
B AHBEEZTEBBARR T
BEITIRAN 2 30% ° BEITFERIE
2010 F e i 5T & R AN & B 1]
HAb AR AT B FTiR B BB IR AE T Al
EEIT 2 RN REL - TSR BREEAN
BT B 2 BRI RZREREBAR
HAE BTN 2 10% * BRIEAR R A
AATRRANSHERIERR © &
FERAR AR A SIERR R -
BRISH A EK2EERMER2(E
RIRREE AR AT I 51T 2 AR AR 3K
5% BEBTRNDZ1% - BEE
fEiEET 2 M ARARERES « 17K
BRYENEEZERRAFESE 2HME
AT H5 L BB AR 4 RIS N FETT
E=(TRERABREARAZ
B IERITES ) 2B o WpME
fal12{8 A BE M AR B 2 EE/RE
SV IENTESHFEES A 25
ZALEN 2 BRERBDEITR
720.1% K #B{EiE 8 5,000,000 %5
TR H B H 2 Wi E
FTE) - BIZERARRIBREAZE
A& F AL AE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no share
options were granted, cancelled or exercised and all share
options had been lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2012.

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the
year:

35.

36.

BIRERHEl (2

REZE2014F £2013F12 431 H
IEEFE - SIEERE - FEHITERE
IR - REVE 2012412 A 31
HILFE - FTEBRED KR -

BREALRS

(B BREAGABBBERAL
foie s BEESN - AEE
FRNEAMEATSRE
PTHEARS :

2014 2013
2014 £ 20134

HK$°000 HK$'000

Sales of natural uranium MR MR EHE
resources to CGNPC-URC KRMER
Purchases of natural uranium B Semizbay-U BB B K AHE R

resources from Semizbay-U

Other taxes related to purchases B & Semizbay-UBEE
of natural uranium resources KRB ROEAMFIE
from Semizbay-U

Management fee paid to NP EZEEREREE
CGNPC-URC

ERP system acquired from A EZHE A ERP 24t
CGN Power

Loan interest income received from B Bl 224 R 4
China Uranium Development EFISUA

Interest income from overdue HER R R B
receivable from CGNPC-URC FEMER TR 2 FI B U A

Loan interest income FEUEERR B3R 2 | B U A

from Huasheng

TERr TAL

1,147,920 743,308

414,229 =

11,854 =

3,778 =

2,821 =

3,560 7,854

580 158

16,186 =

1 84 CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E2014E12 A31 A It EE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

On 15 October 2013, the Group entered into a
framework agreement with CGNPC-URC for the sales
of natural uranium resources for the period ending 31
December 2016 at prevailing market rates. Interests
at LIBOR plus 2% per annum on overdue amounts for
the overdue period will be charged to CGNPC-URC.

On 16 October 2014, the Group entered into a
purchase agreement with Semizbay-U for the
purchases of natural uranium resources from 16
October 2014 to 31 December 2014 with other taxes
in relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 21 May 2014, the Group entered into a service
agreement with CGNPC-URC for the management
services provided by CGNPC-URC from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2014.

On 7 August 2014, the Group entered into a services
agreement with CGN Power for the acquisition of ERP
system.

On 15 October 2013, the Group entered into a
revolving loan facility agreement pursuant to which
the Company provided the revolving loan to China
Uranium Development for the period ended 15
November 2014.

On 22 January 2014, the Group entered into a
framework agreement with Huasheng to deposit
amounts with Huasheng from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016 to generate interests from such
deposits.

All transactions were conducted with terms mutually
agreed with the contracting parties pursuant to signed

agreements.

Details of connected transactions of the Company

are disclosed in the “Directors’ Report” section to the
Annual Report.

36. AREALRS

@ (&

fi -

U

(iii)

)

(vi)

®2013%F10A158 -
AEEESFEZMERR
TR EE 2016512 A 31
AIFEEEBRITHELS
KRB R A MAEZE W
& o BRI N HI
FEIHZLIBORMN2% & 2 A
A% S 2 B R ARER RIS, o

R2014F10A8 168 » &
SEEF AR E20145F
10 A 16 BEE2014412 A
31 BRERAMEIRMET
B HthEER
TH A EAE -

R2014F5H821H » A%
EHPEZHERRERE
201441 A1 A& 20144
12 431 B B Bz
R E RIS M AT AR
St o

MR2014F8A7H + A&
B EXEE ERP R
Brma] SRS hek o

R2013F 108158 » &
EENBREEERS
B - Eit - AARREZE
2014411 A15 8 |- HifE
MR B EEREEER
B -

R2014F1 228 * &%
B fRERTE 201461 A
1HZE2016612A831 AR
HERTFRAEEF B MmET
SAEZRIRTE ©

iR 5 TIRIEFTERR] 1
BEANETEREBEZ
IERFETT -

ARBIBER HFERF
WIERSRSE | PRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. EEEALRS #)
(Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b) FEEBAEZHE
The remuneration of directors of the Company and FRARARBEEREME
other members of key management during the year was EERABZMET ¢
as follows:
2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
Short-term benefits 2 HR R A 16,698 7,673
One-off termination benefits —RIEEHRE R 1,900 -
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 A - 15
18,598 7,688
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ARAEZFERFETHA
key executives was determined by the remuneration BrHEemFMEZEE LK
committee having regard to the performance of ZEMBALTZRERT
individuals and market trends. HBBETE °
1 86 CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$7,534,000 (2013: HK$7,580,000). The
investment properties were expected to generate rental yields
of 10.79% (2013: 10.34%) on an ongoing basis. All properties
held have committed tenants for the next one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

37.

AE
SEEERRE
AEBIERBLHBN

FAERMz2WERSBADLOR
7,534,000/ 7T (20134 : 7,580,000
BL) WEMERHRFEE
£ M & W 510.79% (2013 F -
10.34%) ° FTFFFIB X A4
FR—EREZHF -

RBEHREEER - AEED RE
PR TFIE R 2 2 R REMA
ENFEILAL

2014 2013

2014 F 20134

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Within one year —FR 4,951 5,751
In the second to fifth year inclusive REFEEFRAF(BIEERMFE) 1,339 3,656
6,290 9,407
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

The Group leased certain of its offices and staff quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties were
negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years and
rentals were fixed throughout the rental period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

37.

RIE (B

EEEERE(E)
KEFEBATN
AEERECARERHRRET
WAZRREBIRS - ALY S
EHEFHNT—EEZ=4F WA
SHEREHRETTE -

RHEHEEER  AEERED
AR S HEAER TR RE
HIZ RREERENK :

2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FAT
Land and buildings T RIEF

Within one year —FR 3,363 5,820

In the second to fifth year inclusive RE-_FEERF
(BHEEEMF) 709 2,365
4,072 8,185

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEER AT
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. &R ARRE
THE COMPANY

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FHxT FiBT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B K& 3,664 1,713
Investments in subsidiaries B ARRE 61,250 277,929
64,914 279,642
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRSO ] (a) 40,010 10,005
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary — FEU [&] Z M 7] A 7] FIE (o) 1,299,336 -
Loan receivable from a shareholder — FEURRR R &K - 248,082
Trade and other receivables JE UK AR 3R % EL A R W SR IR 198,277 199,276
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRS 208,942 1,004,400
1,746,565 1,461,763
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables FEASTBR R R E Ath JE AT RUIE 143,028 15,874
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ANIEEY NGRS (b) 2,821 -
Amount due to an intermediate JE P R RS A B ZRIR
holding company (@) 3,803 -
Amount due to a related company iRzl NGIE /e (@) 11,856 -
Income tax payable e FTIS R 7,918 2,910
169,426 18,784
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,577,139 1,442,979
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERREDAE 1,642,053 1,722,621
Capital and reserves A& A Rt A
Share capital & 33,326 33,326
Reserves EE (© 1,059,067 1,168,437
Total equity Ry CE 1,092,393 1,201,763
Non-current liabilities ERBBE
Convertible bonds AI AR ES 549,507 520,705
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 153 153
549,660 520,858
1,642,053 1,722,621
Annual Report 2014 1 89
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #,Z2014%12 A31A It EE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. XA TBBARRT &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: BEE -
(a) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries/a fellow subsidiary/an (@) FEW (FERD) B A R, — R [R 2R B
intermediate holding company/a related company. BRA/ —EhEERAT, —H
RERRIFUE o
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and FAREAEER REREARE
repayable on demand. SKIEE -
(o) Details are set out in note 25. (o) FEERRAMITE25 ©
(©) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: () FARBEBOT ¢
Equity
Share  component
Share options of convertible Other Retained
premium reserve bonds reserve earnings
TARES (RiHER)/
ROEE RRERE e iy HitbftE REEA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THL T THL
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1H 710971 154 138,827 (12) 236,003 1,085,943
Profit for the year FRET = - - - 82470 82,470
Gain arising from translation EHEE 7 - - - 24 = 24
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31 A 710971 154 138,827 12 318,473 1,168,437
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (109,365) (109,365)
Loss arising from translation EXELZER = = = (5) = (9)
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31 H 710971 154 138,827 7 209,108 1,059,067
1 90 CGN Mining Company Limited

PEREXARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 £ E2014F12 A31 A IFEE

39. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. B RYE
Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31 RARIR2014FE 20134512 A 31
December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: BiEEZHBARBOT :

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of shares incorporation/  Place of share capital/paid up Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary held establishment  operations  registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities

HhaL/ BRRA/
KEAIER BERHER RIzH%  #HH%  BRORRAHS AEEELRE TEER
2014 013
N4E  N13E

Direct subsidiaries:
ERWELF:
Yugofoll Holdings Limited  Ordinary shares BVI HongKong 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding

(*Yugofol") Rk IBRAEE ER USS1 each REK
HaRERERAR 50,000 &k

(=R ) BREE1ET
Sino Lion {note b) Qrdinary shares BvI HongKong 1 orcinary share of US$1 each - - Investment holding
() BBl iBRAEE  ER 1REERERAE £ RE#H
Ever Jump Limited Qrdinary shares BvI HongKong 1 orcinary share of US$1 each 100% 100% Inactive

Lk iBRAEE ER \REERERAE £ gE2h
Indirect subsidiaries:
BEMRAT:
Beshabar (MCO) (noteb)  Ordinary shares Macau Macau 1 quota (share) of - S Inactive
EPERR () EER ] B MOP100,000 each fE2h
1ERER)
G{ERE 100000 2R

Beshabar Trading (noteb) ~ Ordinary shares Hong Kong HongKong 100 orcinary shares of HK$1 each - - Inactive
(M) Eak B i 100REEREREE AT EEXE
RELRIEEDAT  Contibutedcaptd  PRC PRC RVB30,000,000 %I0%  95.70% Manufactuing and tradng

(HEkR)) EIN-T e Ll AEE30,0000007 of phamaceutica

of products
HEREEED
Wide Triumph Limited Qrdinary shares Hong Kong HongKong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100% 100% Management senices
IERRAT Bl (3 B 100REBRERAE 1A EERH
Annual Report 2014 1 91
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39. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. MIBARSIFRE

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of shares incorporation/  Place of share capital/paid up Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary held establishment  operations  registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities

AL/ BRRA/
KEAIER BERHER RIz%  #EH%  BRORRAHS AEEELRE TEER
2014 013
NUE  N13E

Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)

BEHELR: (5

Vital Pharmaceuticals Ordinary shares Hong Kong HongKong 100 ordinry shres of HKS each 100% 100% Inactive

Company Limted LR 3 Bk 10REBRERAREEL He
BREEERAR
I Contributed capital ~ PRC PRC RMB43,000,000 100% 100% Selling and distriouting
Sichuan Hengtal BAER e hE AR 43,000,007 of phammacewtical
products
HERAHER
"RPREEFARAT  Convbuedcaptd  PRC PRC RVIB18,000,000 100% 100% Property development
([#Es]) HAER hE ol ARE180000007 and management
NEERRER
‘Dl|gAEEERAT  Contibvedcaptdl  PRC PRC RNB229,541 874 100% 100% Pharmaceutica
(MEEs ) EINCT E HE AR 229541 87470 research and
(evelopment and
investment management
BEFRRRAEE
i Wholly owned foreign enterprise ’ SNEBE L
Notes: B E
(@) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding (@) LA 2 WA S BRI AR B
as at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the SRS o HA P (AR]85 ] 8 AT AT R
reporting period. EENEBES ©
(b) On 21 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale agreement (0) 201366 A21H » AEBFTL
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Sino Lion, Beshabar HEME M BBUE=THE
(MCO) and Beshabar Trading to an independent third party. Sino Lion ~ EEERF [ Beshabar
Details are set out in note 33. Trading 2 27X AHER © 58T
HPTEESS
1 92 CGN Mining Company Limited
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. B RYER#E)

Details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary that have BEEAFEREZZHEZTENE
material non-controlling interests AT E

The table shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the TRBRAEB TG E AN E
Group that have material non-controlling interests: W EMBARGE -

Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation/ and voting rights held Loss allocated Accumulated
Name of establishment/ by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling

subsidiary operations interest interests interests

AR/ R,/ FERRRFSERR FERgR
WEARER 3 3k Bt/ RERADY EE2 R EHEZY
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
014%F  2013F  20M4F  013F  2014F  2013F
HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR  TEr TR TERn

REH#R PRCHE 4.30% 4.30% (169) (315) 1,641 1,798
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BRNEBHAEEAIERERZ
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out MEBAR 2 MBERBMESRYIW
below. The summarised financial information below represents T o TXHBERBE T EE NS
amounts before intragroup eliminations: W SE AT 2 S8

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2014 2013
2014 £F 20134
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEIT FAT
Current assets MENVEE 23,596 16,667
Non-current assets IERENEE 31,889 35,089
Current liabilities and total liabilities ~ REN & &Kk B {E4E5E (14,624) (6,825)

Equity attributable to Z/NEIE7 ZEWN Y o i

owners of the Company 39,220 43,133
Non-controlling interests JEFERRRERS 1,641 1,798
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39. MBARSIFR @)

BEEAFEZERESRZFZENE
DRFE(E)

39. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

194

2014 2013
2014 2013 F
HK$000 HK$'000
THT T
Revenue ] 19,946 14,619
Expenses X (23,865) (21,953)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBERER
expense for the year % 8% (3,919) (7,334)
Other comprehensive income attributable AR BB AEIEE M
to owners of the Company ZEYEH (169) (2,203)
Other comprehensive income attributable — JEIEARERS FE(R E At
to the non-controlling interests ZHEME 12 99
(157) (2,104)
Loss and total comprehensive expense ARRHEE AEEEER
attributable to owners of the Company 2EAY B (3,750) (7,019
Loss and total comprehensive expense SRR R R ER K
attributable to the non-controling interests 2 EfI s 248 (169) (315)
(3,919) (7,334)

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12AALFE

2014 2013
2014 F 2013 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET THIT

Net cash outflow from SRR S R FE

operating activities (7,736) (5,009)
Net cash outflow from WEEERES ML FE

investing activities (294) (261)
Net cash outflow e m L FE (8,030) (5,270)

CGN Mining Company Limited
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40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@)

On 18 March 2011, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with different parties pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to allot and issue
and China Uranium Development agreed to subscribe
the Company’s shares. The share subscription was
completed on 18 August 2011 and China Uranium
Development has become immediate holding company
of the Company.

On 18 February 2014, the parties to the subscription
agreement entered into a supplemental deed to
vary certain terms of the subscription agreement,
including the definition of “Reimbursement Period”
to be amended to “New Reimbursement period”. On
19 March 2015, those parties agreed to extend the
New Reimbursement Period by entering into a second
supplemental deed to the subscription agreement.

Details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 31 March 2011, 11 April 2011, 18 August
2011, 19 August 2011 and 18 February 2014 (the
“Announcement”) and the Company’s circular dated
23 May 2011 (the “Circular”). Unless otherwise
defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the
same meanings as defined in the Circular and the
Announcements.

On 25 March 2015, the Group and an independent third
party, entered into a sales and purchase agreement
pursuant to which (i) the Group has conditionally agreed
to sell and the independent third party has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Yugofoil at HK$61,250,000 and (ii) the Group has
agreed to assign and the independent third party has
agreed to accept the assignment of the interests in the
sum of HK$40,000,000 owing to the Group by Yugofoil
at HK$40,000,000, at an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$101,250,000.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 March 2015.

40. HERREIN

@

MR20114F3A18H * A" 7A]
HREMRT 45 5] R
B AARBERER
B RETEHREMEERERA
EREBARARS - BHR
BER2011F8A18H =K A
PR EEEDKARNAR
ZEBEERAT] -

MN2014F 2181 REE
AR I Bk
MR RERE 2B TIK
;o BIEEE] [HEM]
& [ 3 EHRE ] - K2015
F3H198 ' FIWAHERE
BRI VRBHZEZEZ
D IRRLERFER

FIBEER AR B HEA2011
F3A31H 201194 A 11
H - 201148518H + 2011
F8A19H Kk2014F2 A 18
Bz g ((ZAE D RARA
AIBHAA2011F5 238 2
R ([ZBEH]) - BRXES
BRTIESN - ANAEFTA AR
HBIRZB I R ZE N EFTRE
HEEAMRERRE -

R2015F3H25H ' A&
EE— B E= ARV E
Eih& - B - () AEEE
BRHEREHEMBEIE=
AEBBRERBEKRERS
RE) 2 HEBEITRA - R(E
461,250,000 7T K (i) A
SEEREEEMBLE=
FEREXBERERRAAR
% & &9 X TH40,000,000 7%
THEZ BEERER
101,250,000/8 7T °

EARSHBHRARFA
HEIA2015F3825HH

D -
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Particulars of Major Properties as at 31 December 2014

R2014F12A31H 2 EEWEFE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Location

Office Unit Nos. 15-16

on 1st Floor to 3rd Floor and
Office Unit Nos. 1-12

on 4th Floor of an office building
known as “ BT E F 07,

No. 318 Tianfuda Road North Section,
within Gaoxin District Technology
Incubate Park
(RIEREIMEER),

Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province, the PRC

No. 3, Keyuan South Road,

High-Tech Industrial Development Zone,

Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREE AR AR

BIERE 2
A= Type of properties Lease term
MEEE HEHR
H Office premises Medium-term lease
m)lE PAE HhEREE
B &R
= HTR BRI EE R

RIFAEBILEI3185%
HAE RETER L]
kNN

11BE 32 15-165%
WAEBRAR4HE
121258

PWATENT

s Office premises
mE WAE

BER T

=T

RHE FE B 3 5%

Medium-term lease

hHIEE
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